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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members,

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting their 8t Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 (“Financial
Year”).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the financial year under review, the Company has earned profit of Rs. 22,676 (INR in
Thousands). The Financial Summary of the Company for the F.Y. ended 2023-24 is given
below:

Particulars Year Ended on 31 March, 2024 | Year Ended on 31 March, 2023
(Figures in INR Thousands) (Figures in INR Thousands)
Total Revenue 1,23,353 2,70,717
Other Income 1,753 4,866
Total Income 1,25,106 2,75,583
Total Expenses 95,911 2,38,966
Profit /loss before taxation 29,195 36,617
Less: Tax Expenses 6,519 7,058
Profit / loss after tax 22,676 29,559

RESERVES

During the year, X45,17,000 were transferred to the Statutory Reserve created under the
provisions of Section 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 (""NHB Act").

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors did not recommend dividend for the financial year 2023-24.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

The Company continues to fulfill all the norms and standards laid down by the NHB pertaining
to non- performing assets, capital adequacy, statutory liquidity assets etc. As at March 31,
2024, the Company’s capital adequacy ratio (CAR) stood at 106.25 % of which Tier I capital
was 105.67% and Tier II capital was 0.58% as per regulatory norms.

ORDER PASSED BY REGULATORS

During the year under review, no significant or material orders were passed by the regulators
or courts or tribunals against or by the Company impacting the going concern status or
operations of the Company in future.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT

Material changes and commitment which have occurred between the end of the financial year
of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report, are as
follows:

Change in Directorships:

S. No. Name Designation Change Date of Change

1 Aparna Bihany Director & Resignation | 04/04/2024
Whole Time Director

2 Rakesh Kaul Additional Director Appointment | 04/04/2024

3 Gagan Aggarwal | Additional Director & | Appointment| 27/05/2024

Whole Time Director

There are no other material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company, which have occurred after March 31, 2024 till the date of this report.

MARKET BORROWING

The Company had issued listed NCDs, which were all paid off during the year.

The Company complied with the provisions relating to the “Housing Finance Companies
Issuance of Non- Convertible Debentures on private placement basis (NHB) Directions, 2014”,
“RBI HFC Directions, 2021” and “Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company -
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023” as applicable and has been regular in payment of
principal and interest on the NCDs.

REGULATORY GUIDELINES

The power of regulation of Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) has been conferred on
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and National Housing Board (NHB) to carry out the function of
supervision of HFCs. RBI had issued ‘Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company -
Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021’ (RBI HFC Directions) which are
applicable on the Company.

The Company is in compliance with the applicable provisions and requirements of the
RBI/HFC Directions and other directions/ guidelines issued by RBI/NHB wherever
applicable.

LENDING OPERATIONS

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (NBFC-HFC)
and is engaged in Housing Finance activities in India. All other activities of the Company
revolve around the main business activities of the Company.
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BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S WORKING DURING
THE YEAR/STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIR

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Clix Capital Services Private Limited (CCSPL) and
is registered with the National Housing Bank to carry on housing finance activities. The
Company has earned interest income of X 1,02,688 (INR in Thousands) on loans. There are no
outstanding material commitments, tax liabilities etc. affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which
the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

During the financial year 2022-23, the Board of Directors of the Company had approved the
scheme of Amalgamation (“the Scheme”) for the amalgamation with its Holding Company, Clix
Capital Services Private Limited. The company approached all the stakeholders including
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and National Housing Board (NHB) for No objection for the same.
RBI had vide its letter dated October 27, 2022 and January 31, 2023 given its no objection for
the Holding Company & the Company respectively. In the interim both the companies are re-
evaluating the option of going ahead with the scheme.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there were no changes in nature of business of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY / JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES

During the year under review, the Company had no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company did not accept any public deposit(s) under the provisions
contained in section 73 of the act read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

AUDITORS

+ Statutory Auditors
M/s DMKH & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm registration no. 116886W) continues to be the
Statutory Auditor of the Company till the conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting.

« Proposed Auditors

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, has, subject to the approval of Shareholders in the
ensuing AGM, proposed appointment of Ravi Rajan & Co., LLP (Firm registration no.
009073N/N500320) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of three years.

Ravi Rajan & Co. LLP is Delhi based CA Firm with more than 20 years of experience in Bank and NBFC
Audits.

Auditor’s Report: The notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.
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+ Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("'the Act") and Rule 9 of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s VKC
& Associates, Company Secretaries (ICSI Firm Registration No. P2018DE077000) was appointed as the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to undertake the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024.

The Secretarial Audit Report as given by the Secretarial Auditor in the form of MR-3 is appended as
Annexure- III to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report is self-explanatory and does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

« Internal Audit & Control

The Company has in place an adequate internal audit framework to monitor the efficacy of internal
controls with the objective of providing to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, an
independent, objective and reasonable assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
organization’s risk management, control and governance processes. The framework is commensurate
with the nature of the business and the size of its operations. Internal auditing at the Company involves
the utilization of a systematic methodology for analyzing business processes or organizational
problems and recommending solutions to add value and improve the organization’s operations. The
audit approach verifies compliance with the regulatory, operational and system related procedures
and controls.

During the financial year under review, no material or serious observations have been received from
the Auditors of the Company citing inefficacy or inadequacy of such controls.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year, design/operation were observed per the provisions of Rule 8(5) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

Pursuant to provisions of Section 143(12) of the Act, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any
incident of fraud to the Audit, during the year under review.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended
and notified under Section 133 of the Act and other provisions of the Act. The details of the accounting
treatment followed during the financial year are mentioned in Notes to Financial Statements.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has devised a policy for selection and
appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Senior Management Employees and
their remuneration namely, Nomination & Remuneration Policy.

CLIX HOUSING ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Public & Non Confidential Information



CL>X

The Nomination & Remuneration policy of the Company is placed on the website and can be accessed
through the link: Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Salient features of the Nomination & Remuneration Policy, inter alia, includes:

e To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence for
appointment and removal of a director.

e To recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel which involves a balance between the
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short-term and long-term objectives appropriate to the working
of the Company and its goals.

CREDIT RATING

The NCDs issued by the company were redeemed on 30th September, 2023. The last credit rating was
taken from Acuite Ratings & Research, which was ACUITE A+ | Stable | Downgraded |Negative to Stable.
Thereafter, neither new NCDs were issued by the company and nor any credit rating was required to
be obtained.

SHARE CAPITAL & CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, there were changes in the Share Capital of the Company as 2,00,000
Equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each, have been issued to Clix Capital Services Private Limited on
rights basis. The authorized and paid-up capital was increased by an amount of Rs. 20,00,000 and now
stands at Rs. 55,20,00,000, as on 31st March, 2024.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Section 134 of the Act, the Annual Return as on March 31, 2024 in
Form MGT-7 shall be available (upon submission with MCA) on the website of the Company which can
be accessed through the website link: Clix Capital .

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company being incorporated for providing housing finance services, does not carry out any activity
relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and export of materials, goods or services.
Given the nature of the activities of the Company the provisions pertaining to conservation of energy
and technology absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo are not applicable to the Company.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
INCLUDING THOSE WHO WERE APPOINTED OR HAVE
RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR

S.No. | Name of the Director Designation Date of Change | Appointment/resignation
1 Kaushik Ramakrishnan Director -- --
2 Vikram Rathi Director -- --
3 Vinu Rajat Kalra Company Secretary 17/08/2023 Appointment
4 Amit Kumar Jain CFO -- --
5
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company’s performance and
business strategy. The Board of Directors met 6 (Six) times during the financial year 2023-24, the
details of Directors, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report
annexed as Annexure I which forms part of this report.

ANNUAL EVALUATION - BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND OF
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees
and individual Directors for the financial year 2023-24 in pursuance to the provisions of the Act and
Rules made thereunder as amended from time to time.

The Board and Nomination and Remuneration Committee discussed the performance in line with the
requirements of Act, regulations, Directions and the relevant policies of the Company, further basis the
discussions, attendance and involvement of the directors during the meetings the performance was
found to be satisfactory. The performance of the Board and Committees was evaluated based on the
terms of reference, frequency of meetings and the decisions taken during the year. The Committee
found that the duties as per the statutory requirements of the Board and committees were duly met and
the performance was satisfactory.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES/INVESTMENTS

The Company is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company with the Reserve Bank of India. Hence
provisions related to Loans, Guarantees/Investments under Section 186 of the Act are not applicable.
However, the details of loans, guarantees and investments made by the company are mentioned under
the relevant head of the Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES

All the related party transactions entered or modified during the financial year, were pursuant to
Section 188(1) of the Act on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business accordingly, no
transactions are being reported in Form AOC-2.

The related party disclosure as required under Clause 3A of Annexure IV of NHB Act is given in Note
no. C36 of Financials Statements enclosed to this Annual Report.

Further, the Disclosure of related party transaction also forms part of Schedule to Accounts annexed to
the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company is in the business of lending home loans and loans against properties. The Company has
in place effective Risk Management framework so that risks that the Company faces are identified,
controlled, and priced in a manner that the Company can continue its operations in a profitable and
sustainable manner. Risk Management is continuous process and Company is constantly monitoring
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its applicable risk and seek modern and scientific methods to mitigate the same. Further, the Company
has Risk Management Committee to monitor and evaluate the same.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company
hereby state and confirm that:

e In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

e The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit of the Company for that
period;

e The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

e The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

e The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DISCLOSURES UNDER PREVENTION OF SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE ACT, 2013

The total employee strength of the Company is less than 10, thus, the provisions of Prevention of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace Act are not applicable.

DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF A VIGIL MECHANISM

Creating a fraud and corruption-free culture has always been at the Company’s core. Keeping in view
of the same and in compliance with the provisions of the Section 177 of the Act read with the rules
made thereunder, the Whistle-Blower Policy is formulated as part of the Vigil Mechanism established
by the Company for Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns, to provide a secure
environment and to encourage employees to report unethical, unlawful or improper practices, acts or
activities in the Company and to prohibit managerial personnel from taking any adverse personnel
action against those employees who report such Practices in good faith.

This Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is framed in context of these statutory requirements and
to put in place an appropriate framework for this purpose.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has implemented governance practices as mandated by law. The Company is committed
to transparency in all its dealings and places high emphasis on business ethics.

The report on corporate governance is annexed as Annexure-I and forms part of this Report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In accordance with the directions issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI), the MD&A Report forms an
integral part of this report and gives details of the overall industry structure, economic developments,
performance and state of affairs of your Company’s business in India, risk management systems and
other material developments during the year under review, as per Annexure-II.

BOARD COMMITTEES

During the period under review the Board of the Company had the following committees:

I. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 177(1) and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Boards and its Powers)
Rules, 2014, relating to the Composition of Audit Committee are applicable on the Company. The
members of the Audit Committee met 3 (Three) times during the period under review, the details of
Directors, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate Governance report annexed
as Annexure- I which forms part of this report.

II. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are applicable to the Company. The members of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee met 3
(Three) times during the year. The details of Directors, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned
in the Corporate Governance report annexed as Annexure- I which forms part of this report.

III. ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (ALCO)

Board of Directors has constituted the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) for the company
as per RBI Regulations. The members of Asset Liability Management Committee met Four (4) times
during the year the details of Directors, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate
Governance report annexed as Annexure- I which forms part of this report.

IV. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company has in place a Risk Management Committee which meets at regular intervals to take note
on various risks involved and bring out means and measures to reduce the risks. The Committee met
twice (2), during the year. The composition, meetings and attendance are detailed in the Corporate
Governance Report which is annexed at Annexure- I and forms part of this Report.

V. IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted IT Strategy Committee in compliance with the requirements of Reserve
Bank of India (“RBI”). The scope of the Committee inter alia, includes review and approval of IT strategy
and policy documents, information security and any other matter related to IT governance. The
Committee met once during the financial year. The detailed information about committee meetings,
members and attendance is further provided in the Corporate Governance Report which is annexed at
Annexure- I and forms part of this Report.
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DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

The details of the Debenture Trustee of the Company are as under:

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Office Address: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony, Kothrud Road, Pune, Maharashtra (411038)
Contact No.: 0120- 25280081

Email Id: dt@ctltrustee.com

FIT AND PROPER CRITERIA & CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has received undertaking and declaration from each Director on fit and proper criteria
in terms of the provisions of Housing Finance Companies - Corporate Governance Directions, 2016
(NHB Directions). The Board of Directors has confirmed that all existing Directors are fit and proper to
continue to hold the position as Directors on the Board. The same was reviewed by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee under NHB Directions. All the Directors of the Company have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company.

DETAILS OF UNCLAIMED NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

During the year under review, all NCDs were redeemed and as on date, no debentures are outstanding.
Thus, the said provisions are not applicable on the Company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards
issued and as amended by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

The Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore,
there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF).

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Directors wish to place on record their heartfelt appreciation for the efforts of the Company’s
stakeholder. During this financial year no order has been passed by the authorities which impacts the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

For and on behalf of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Date: 6th September, 2024 Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Gurugram Gagan Aggarwal Kaushik Ramakrishnan
Whole-time Director Director

DIN: 10423472 DIN: 08303198
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ANNEXURE- 1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company follows high standards of corporate governance principles and best practices. The
corporate governance policy of the Company prescribe a set of systems and processes guided by the
core principles of transparency, disclosure, accountability, compliances, ethical conduct and the
commitment to promote the interests of all stakeholders.

The Board of Directors are responsible for and committed to sound principles of Corporate Governance
in the Company. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the management serves the short and
long-term interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. This belief is reflected in our governance
practices, under which we strive to maintain an effective, informed and independent Board. We keep
our governance practices under continuous review and benchmark ourselves to best practices across
the Country.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At Clix Housing, we believe that a diversified, active and well-informed Board is necessary to ensure
highest standards of Corporate Governance. We believe that an enlightened Board consciously creates
a culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of
governance. The statutory and other significant and material information is placed before the Board to
enable it to discharge its fiduciary duties keeping in mind the interests of all its stakeholders and the
Company’s corporate governance philosophy.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The board composition during the year and upto the date of this report is as under:

S. No. Name of Director Capacity DIN No. of No. of Remunerati | No. of shares
Director Since Board other on, Salary, held in and
Meetings | directors or any convertible
Attended hips other instruments
considerati
on paid
1. Kaushik 17/02/2021 Non- 08303198 6 9 Nil -
Ramakrishnan Executive
2. Vikram Rathi | 11/02/2022 Non- 08769167 6 0 Nil il
Executive
3. Aparna 02/12/2022 | Whole- Time | 09039798 5 -- Nil --
Bihany* Director
4. Rakesh Kaul 04/04/2024 Non- 03386665 -- 2 Nil 1#
Executive
5. Gagan 27/05/2024 | Whole- Time | 10423472 - 1 Nil il
Aggarwal Director

*Resigned w.e.f. 04/04/2024.
# Shares are held as nominee of the holding company.
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The Company’s Board consists of 4 (Four) Directors.

S. No. Name of Director Capacity Nature of Change Effective Date

1. Kaushik Ramakrishnan Non- Executive -- --

2. Vikram Rathi Non-Executive -- --

3. Aparna Bihany - Resignation 04/04/2024

4. Rakesh Kaul Non-Executive Appointment 04/04/2024

5. Gagan Aggarwal Whole Time Director Appointment 27/05/2024
Note:

1. None of the Directors holds office as a director, including alternate director, in more than twenty
(20) Companies at the same time. None of them hold directorships in more than ten (10) Public
Companies. For reckoning the limit of Public Companies, directorships of Private Companies that
are either Holding or Subsidiary Company of a Public Company are included.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company’s performance and business
strategy. During the financial year, the Board of Directors met 6 (Six) times i.e., on 26th May 2023, 14th
July 2023, 26t July 2023, 09th August 2023, 17th August 2023 and 8th December 2023 and the gap
between two meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days as required under Section 173 of
the Act.

The details of Board, its meetings and attendance thereat are as under:

S. No. Name of Capacity Total No. of Attendance during | No. of shares held in
Director Meeting Held the meeting company
1. Kaushik Non- Executive 6 6 --
Ramakrishnan
2. Vikram Rathi Non- Executive 6 6 1#
3. Aparna Bihany* -- 6 5 --
4. Rakesh Kaul ** | Non- Executive 6 -- 1#
5. Gagan Whole Time 6 - 1#
Aggarwal*** Director

* Resigned w.e.f. 04/04/2024.

** Appointed w.e.f. 04/04/2024.

** Appointment w.e.f. 27/05/2024.

#Shares are held as nominee of the holding company.

INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD

Agenda papers along with the necessary documents and information are circulated to the Board and
the members of the Board Committee(s) well in advance before each meeting in compliance with the
provisions of the Act and Secretarial Standards. In addition to the general business items, the following
items/ information is regularly placed before the Board and/or Committees to the extent applicable:
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* Quarterly, half yearly and annual results of the Company;

 Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board of Directors;

« Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, which are materially important;

- Strategic business proposal or activities to be undertaken;

« Purchase and disposal of major fixed assets;

« Sale of material nature of investments and assets, which are not in the normal course of Business;

« Reports on Internal Controls Systems, Internal Audit Reviews and Statutory Audit reviews etc.;

- Related Party Transactions;

 Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders’ Services; and
« Internal Audit Plan/ Calendar etc.

All material information is incorporated in the agenda for facilitating meaningful and focused
discussions at the meeting. The quantum and quality of information supplied by the management to
the Board goes well beyond the minimum requirements stipulated under the Act, Secretarial Standards
on Meetings of the Board of Directors issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and as
per the requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations, wherever applicable.

MINUTES OF BOARD/COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Minutes of proceedings of Board and Committee meetings are recorded and draft minutes are
circulated to Board/Committee members for their comments and/or confirmation within 15 days from
the date of the meeting. The inputs, if any, of the Board & Committee Members are duly incorporated
in the minutes after which these are entered in the minute book within 30 days from the date of
meeting.

BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEES
I. AUDIT COMMITTEE

As per the provisions of Section 177(1) and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Boards and its
Powers) Rules, 2014 and Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company -
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as applicable, the Board had constituted Audit Committee.
The members of the Audit Committee met Three (3) times during the period under review i.e, on 26t
May 2023, 9th August 2023 and 8th December 2023.

The details of Committee membership, its meetings and attendance thereat are as under:

S.No. Name of Member of Capacity Total No. | Attendance No. of
Director Committee of during the | shares held
Since Meetings | meetings | in company
Held
1. Kaushik 17/02/2021 Member 3 3 --
Ramakrishnan

2. Vikram Rathi 11/01/2022 Member 3 3 1#

3. Aparna Bihany* -- -- 3 3 --

4. Rakesh Kaul** 04/04/2024 Member 3 -- 1#

*Resigned with w.e.f. 04/04/2024.
** Appointed w.e.f. 04/04/2024.

#Shares are held as nominee of the holding company.
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All the Members have the ability to read and understand financial statements and have relevant finance
and / or audit experience.

Terms of reference

The composition of the Audit Committee, its authority, role, responsibilities and powers and reporting
functions are in accordance with the Act and Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI").
The responsibilities of the Audit Committee, inter alia, include:

11

To review the financial reporting process, the system of internal financial controls, the audit
process, the Company’s process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the Code
of Conduct of the Company;

To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the
Company and discuss with Auditors the nature and scope of their audit before commencement;
To review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of Audit
process;

To examine the financial statement, financial results and the Auditors’ report thereon;

To approve transactions or any subsequent modification to the transactions of the Company with
related parties;

To scrutinize inter-corporate loans and investments;

To approve payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
Auditors;

To evaluate internal financial controls;

To monitor end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

To review the performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the internal control
systems;

To review findings of internal investigations, frauds, irregularities etc. and

To review Internal Audit Plan/ Calendar etc.

. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As per the provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) the Board has constituted the NRC. The Committee met Three (3) times during the
year on 26th May 2023, 17th August 2023 and 8th December 2023.

The composition of the NRC, details of meetings and attendance thereat are as under:

S. No. Name of Member of Capacity Total No. | Attendance | No. of shares held
Director Committee of during the in company
Since Meetings | meetings
Held
Kaushik 17/02/2021 Member 3 3 -
Ramakrishnan
Vikram Rathi 11/01/2022 Member 3 3 1#
Aparna Bihany* -- -- 3 3 =
Rakesh Kaul ** | 04/04/2024 Member 3 -- 1#

*Resigned with effect from 04/04/2024.
** Appointed with effect from 04/04 /2024
# Shares are held as nominee of the holding company.
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Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the NRC, inter alia, include:

To ensure 'fit and proper' status of proposed/ existing directors

To scrutinize the fit and proper declarations

To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal.

To specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and
individual directors.

Evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent
director.

Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

III. ASSET AND LIABILITY COMMITTEE

In accordance with the requirement of Reserve Bank of India guidelines on Asset - Liability
Management (ALM) System, the Board has constituted Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO). The
ALCO Committee met Four (4) times, during the year on 27t June 2023, 27th September 2023, 21st
December 2023, 28th March,2024.

The Committee Membership, meeting details and attendance are as under:

S. No. Name of Member of Capacity Total No. | Attendance | No. of shares
Director Committee of during the held in
Since Meetings meetings company
Held

1. Rakesh Kaul | 04/04/2024 Member 4 4 1#

2. Gagan 27/05/2024 Member 4 4 1#
Aggarwal

3. Vikram Rathi | 11/01/2022 Member 4 3 1#

Other Members
4. Vijaykumar - Member 4 2 --
Ramakrishna
5. Dhariya Parikh - Member 4 4 --
6. Ruchika - Member 4 3 --
Sharma

7. Naman Jain - Member 4 4 --

8. Ankit - Member 4 4 --
Aggarwal

9. Shivam - Member 4 4 -
Miglani*

*Resigned w.e.f. 30t August, 2024.

#Shares are held as nominee of the holding company.

Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the ALCO Committee, inter alia, include:
e Adherence to the risk tolerance/ limits set by the Board

e Implementing the liquidity risk management strategy of the NBFC

e Decision on desired maturity profile and mix of incremental assets and liabilities,

CLIX HOUSING ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Public & Non Confidential Information

14



CL>X

Sale of assets as a source of funding,

The structure, responsibilities, and controls for managing liquidity risk, and
Overseeing the liquidity positions of all branches

Trading risk management

IV. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

As per the requirement Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company -
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, the Board has, for monitoring legal risks and mitigating the
risks due to regular review of changes in the regulatory framework, constituted the Risk Management
Committee (RMC). The RMC met twice, on 11t August 2023 and 07t November 2023, during the
Financial Year.

The Composition of the Committee, the details of meeting and attendance are as under:

S. No. Name of Member of Capacity Total No. of | Attendance No. of shares

Director Committee Meetings during the held in
since Held meetings company
1. Kaushik 17/02/2021 Member 2 2 —
Ramakrishnan

2. Vikram Rathi 11/01/2022 Member 2 2 1#

3. Aparna -- Member 2 0 --
Bihany*

4. Rakesh Kaul** 04/04/2024 Member 2 -- 1#

*Resigned with effect from 04/04/2024.
** Appointed with effect from 04/04/2024.
#Shares are held as nominee of the holding company.

Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee, inter alia, include:

To formulate a detailed risk management policy.

To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and
evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;

To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the
adequacy of risk management systems;

To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by
considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken;

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be
subject to review by the Risk Management Committee.

Approving a framework to evaluate the risks and materiality of all existing and prospective
outsourcing and the policies that apply to such arrangements;

Laying down appropriate approval authorities for outsourcing depending on risks and
materiality;

Setting up suitable administrative framework of senior management for the purpose of these
directions;

Undertaking regular review of outsourcing strategies and arrangements for their continued
relevance, and safety and soundness and
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e Deciding on business activities of a material nature to be outsourced and approving such
arrangements

e Toreview of material outsourcing records on half-yearly basis

The Company has formulated IT Strategy Committee in compliance with the requirements of Reserve
Bank of India (“RBI”), Master Circular - Information Technology framework for NBFC sector and other
applicable RBI Regulations. The scope of the Committee inter alia, includes review and approval of IT
strategy and policy documents, information security and any other matter related to IT governance.
The Committee met twice (2) during the financial year, i.e. on 28th September, 2023 and 14th March,

2024.

The Composition of the Committee, the details of meeting and attendance are as under:

S. Name of Member of Capacity Total No. of | Attendance No. of
No. Director Committee Meetings during the shares
Since Held meetings held in
company
1. Vikram Rathi 11/01/2022 Member 2 2 1#
2. Gagan 27/05/2024 Member 2 0 =
Aggarwal*
3. Rakesh Kaul** | 04/04/2024 Member 2 -- 1#

*Appointed w.e.f. 27/05/2024.
**Appointed w.e.f. 04/04/2024.
#Shares held as nominee of the holding company.

Terms of reference

The responsibilities of the IT Strategy Committee, inter alia, include:

e Toidentify system deficiencies and defects at the system design, development and testing phases
e To provide oversight and monitoring of the progress of the project, including deliverables to be
realized at each phase of the project and milestones to be reached according to the project
timetable.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of location, day, date and time of the General Meetings held during the last three years and
resolutions passed there at are given below.

Video conferencing (VC) /

Financial Type & Location Day, Date & Time Summary of Special Business
Year passed
2023-24 Annual General Meeting Day - Friday

Date-29th September, 2023-Appointment of Ms. Aparna Bihany as a

Other Audio Visual means  [Time - 3:00 PM whole-time director.

(OAVM) / (e-AGM)

Extra  Ordinary  GeneralDay - Wednesday -Increase in Authorized Capital
Meeting Date - 19th July, 2023

Video conferencing (VC) /
Other Audio Visual means

Time - 5:00 PM

(OAVM) / (e-AGM)
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110001

Cannaught Place, New Delhi

2022-23 Annual General Meeting Day - Friday - Regularization of Additional
Video conferencing (VC) /|Date - 30t September, 2022 Director Mr. Vikram Rathi as a
Other Audio Visual means  [Time - 12 Noon Director of the Company.
(OAVM) / (e-AGM) -Approval of Related Party Transaction
with Clix Capital Services Private
Limited
2021-22 |Annual General MeetingDay - Thursday -Appointment of Kaushik
Registered office- 4th Floor,Date - 30th September, 2021] Ramakrishnan as Director.
Kailash Time - 3:30 PM -Appointment  of  Venkatraman
Building Kasturba Bharatdwaj as Director.
Gandhi Marg, - To approve and authorize to borrow

money in terms of Section 180(1) &
Section18(1)(A) of the Act

Attendance of each director at the last annual general meeting:

Members

Presence in the meeting

Kaushik Ramakrishnan

Vikram Rathi Present
Aparna Bihany* =
Rakesh Kaul** NA
Gagan Aggarwal NA

*Resigned with effect from 04/04/2024.
** Appointed with effect from 04/04/2024.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

- DATE, TIME, AND VENUE
Day: Friday

Date: September 27,2024

Time: 3:00 p.m.

Venue: The Company will conduct the meeting through VC / 0AVM, relevant details of which have been

provided in the notice of AGM.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through its circulars Nos. 20/2020, 02/2021, 2/2022 and
09/2023 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, allowed companies to hold Annual General
Meeting through VC/OAVM up to September 30, 2024 and send financial statements (including Board’s
report, Auditors’ Report and other documents to be attached therewith) through email.

Accordingly, the Annual Report of the Company for FY 2024 along with the Notice of AGM are being
sent by email to the members and all other persons/entities entitled to receive the same. As stated
above, 8th AGM of the Company will be convened through VC or OAVM.
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FINANCIAL YEAR

The Financial Year of the Company starts from 1st April of a year and ends on 31st March of the
following year.

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGE

The Non-Convertible Debentures issued by the Company were listed on - National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE) Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai - 400 051, up to 30th September, 2023. Thereafter the NCDs have been paid off. The Company
has paid Annual Listing Fees for FY 2022-23 to the exchange within the stipulated time.

STOCK CODE: Not Applicable

MARKET PRICE DATA- HIGH, LOW DURING EACH MONTH IN LAST
FINANCIAL YEAR: Not Applicable*

PERFORMANCE IN COMPARISON TO BROAD-BASED INDICES SUCH AS BSE
SENSEX, CRISIL INDEX ETC: Not Applicable*

*The equity shares of the Company are not listed on the stock exchange and hence the details are
not applicable to the Company.

IN CASE THE SECURITIES ARE SUSPENDED FROM TRADING, THE
DIRECTORS REPORT SHALL EXPLAIN THE REASON THEREOF: Not Applicable

PLANT LOCATIONS: Not Applicable
SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has in 2018 mandated

Dematerialization of shares for all Unlisted Public Companies. However, wholly owned subsidiaries
were exempt from the requirement.

The Company being wholly owned subsidiary of Clix Capital Services Private Limited has its shares in
physical format only. The transfer and transmission request and dealing with the Shareholders is
handled in house by the Company.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 315T MARCH 2024

S. No. Name of the equity No. of equity | % age Nature of Ownership
shareholder Share held

1 Clix Capital Services Private Ltd. | 55,199,994** | 100 | Holding Company

2 Vishal Jain 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
3 Vikram Rathi 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
4 Gagan Aggarwal 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
5 Sanjay Rajpal 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
6 Rakesh Kaul 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
7 Thimma Prakash Shetty 1 - Nominee of Holding Company

**200,000 shares were allotted on right basis, on 1st Auaust, 2023.
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ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

Shareholders/investors can correspond with the Company at the following address:

Registered Office:

Plot No. 23, 5th Floor, Aggarwal corporate Tower, Govind Lal Sikka Marg, Rajendra Place, New Delhi-
110008

Corporate Office Address:

6th Floor, Good Earth Business Bay-2, Sector 58, Gurugram, 122102

CREDIT RATINGS

The NCDs of the company were redeemed on 30th September, 2023 and as on date there are no NCDs
issued by the company. Thus, no credit rating has been obtained by the company post 30th September,
2023.

DATES OF BOOK CLOSURE

Not Applicable during the period under review, the Board does not recommend payment of any
Dividend on the Equity Shares for FY 2023-24.

DIVIDEND PAYMENT

During the period under review, the Board does not recommend payment of any Final Dividend on the
Equity Shares for FY 2023-24.

NOMINATION POLICY

Provision of Section 72 of the Act, read with rule 19(1) of the rules made thereunder extends
nomination facility to the individuals holding shares in the physical form. To help the legal heirs /
successors get the shares transmitted in their favor, shareholder(s)are requested to furnish the
particulars of their nomination in the prescribed Nomination Form.

UPDATE YOUR CORRESPONDENCE ADDRESS/ BANK
MANDATE/ EMAIL ID

To ensure all communications/ monetary benefits received promptly, all shareholders holding shares
in physical form are requested to notify to the Company, change in their address / bank details / email
ID instantly by written request under the signatures of sole/ first joint holder.

QUOTE FOLIO NO. / DP ID NO.

Shareholders/Beneficial Owners are requested to quote their Folio Nos./DP ID Nos., as the case may
be, in all correspondence with the Company.

Shareholders are also requested to quote their Email IDs, Contact/Fax numbers (landline/ cell phone)
for prompt reply to their correspondence.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED SHARES TO INVESTOR
EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

No dividend has been declared by the Company since its inception and thus, no amount was required
to be transferred, on account of unclaimed dividend, to Investor Education and Protection Fund.
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VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

The provisions related to the electronic voting are not applicable to the Company.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Particulars

Details

Disclosures on materially significant related party
transactions that may have potential conflict with
the interests of listed entity at large.

There are no material related party
transactions during the year under review that
have potential conflict with the interest of the
Company

Details of non-compliance by the Company with
requirement of the Act, penalties, strictures
imposed on entity by Reserve Bank or any
statutory authority.

Nil

Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism /
Whistle Blower Policy and affirmation that no
personnel have been denied access to the audit
committee.

In compliance with the applicable provisions
of the Act and other applicable regulations, the
Board of Directors has approved and adopted
the policy/mechanism on dealing with whistle
blowers. The Audit Committee reviews
Whistle Blower cases on quarterly basis.
During the year, no individual was denied
access to the Audit Committee for reporting
concerns, if any. The said policy/mechanism is
disclosed on the Company’s website, link for

which is Vigil Mechanism

Web link where policy for determining ‘Material’
Subsidiaries is disclosed.

The Company does not have any Subsidiary
Company. Thus, the requirement for the policy
of determining material subsidiaries is not
applicable.

Web link where policy on dealing with related party
transactions.

The Company has formulated a Policy on
Related Party Transactions which is also
available on Company's website, the link to
which is Fit and Proper Criteria for Directors

Details of utilization of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

Not Applicable

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to
firms/companies in which directors are interested
by name and amount

Nil

Remuneration paid to the directors

Nil

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The total employee strength of the Company is
less than 10, thus, the provisions of Prevention
of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
Act are not applicable.
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Disclosure of Non-compliance of any requirement| Nil
of corporate governance report of sub-paras, with
reasons thereof shall be disclosed.

The disclosures of the compliance with corporate | Duly complied with these regulations, upto 30th
governance requirements specified in regulation | September, 2023.

17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2)
of regulation 46.

Instances of breach of covenant of loan availed or | Nil
debt securities issued.

DECLARATION SIGNED BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
STATING THAT THE MEMBERS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL HAVE AFFIRMED
COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

There are no outstanding NCDs, thus, the provisions related to Code of Conduct are not applicable.

For and on behalf of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Date: 6th September, 2024 Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Gurugram Gagan Aggarwal Kaushik Ramakrishnan
Whole-time Director Director

DIN: 10423472 DIN: 08303198
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ANNEXURE- II
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND

ANALYSIS REPORT
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

NBFCs have become important constituents of India’s financial sector and have been recording
higher credit growth than scheduled commercial banks (SCBs) over the past few years. NBFCs
continue to leverage their superior understanding of regional dynamics and customised products
and services to expedite financial inclusion in India. Lower transaction costs, innovative products,
quick decision making, customer orientation and prompt service standards have typically
differentiated NBFCs from banks. Systemically important NBFCs have demonstrated agility,
innovation and frugality to provide formal financial services to millions of Indians. The growing
importance of NBFCs is reflected in the consistent rise of their credit as a proportion to GDP as well
as in relation to credit extended by SCBs to the NBFC sector.

INDIA’S HOUSING SECTOR

The Indian housing sector has been experiencing significant growth recently. Housing property
market across India has witnessed substantial growth in sales volumes. The top eight cities,
including Mumbai, Delhi-NCR, Bengaluru, Pune, and Hyderabad, have led this uptrend, propelling
the country’s residential real estate market to an 11-year high in sales volumes.

The strong economic fundamentals and stable socio-political conditions have contributed to the
buoyancy of India’s property market. Both the residential and office segments have recorded
decadal high numbers.

The housing finance market in India is evolving, with various players offering finance for
homebuyers. However, HFCs continue to dominate the market, and government initiatives and
incentives for affordable housing could further increase the demand for housing finance. Over the
years, the government has initiated various reforms that have led to a rise in incomes and standards
of living across the country. This, and other trends, such as a budding preference for nuclear families,
job mobility, etc., have resulted in an increase in housing, over and above the existing demand-
supply gap. In the home loan industry, Scheduled Commercial Banks and Housing Finance
Companies are the two major players that predominantly cater to the financing needs of the Indian
housing market. The demand for housing is not limited to urban areas, and there is a need for
affordable housing in rural regions as well. To address this demand-supply mismatch, there may be
special incentives for customers and builders in this segment. Government initiatives such as
‘Housing for All’ have also created demand for housing finance, especially in the low-income
segment.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The Housing Finance market has lot of opportunities as both rural and semi-urban markets are
vastly underserved, there is massive housing shortage in the country. Further, the Government has
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its focus on affordable housing. Urbanisation, nuclearization and population growth is also giving
opportunities to the housing market.

The market also have its share of threats high inflation and rise in borrowing cost, industry or
economic competitive situations and the uncertain economic and political environment.

RISK MANAGEMENT

As a housing finance company, the Company faces financial, operating, market, regulatory and
compliance risks, hence, risk management is crucial. The Company has risk management and audit
framework in place to identify, assess, monitor and manage various types of internal and external
risks. In terms of the RBI NDS Company has a Risk Management Policy (RMC) to oversee the credit
risk management and ensure that the credit risks are properly identified and are properly
managed. The Company has a Board approved Risk Management policy which lays down the
guiding principles that help the management in complying with the statutory and regulatory
requirements/guidelines. The Company has an Asset and Liquidity Management Committee
(ALCO), which has the responsibility to manage the liquidity and interest rate risk for the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal Control System to ensure adherence to company's policies and
procedures, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to ensure that management
information and financial reporting is correct, reliable, and complete, to enable detection and
prevention of frauds and errors and to safeguard the company assets against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition, amongst others.

The internal control system of the Company is supplemented by extensive internal audits, regular
reviews by the management and standard policies and guidelines to ensure reliability of financial
and all other records to prepare financial data. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the
Internal Audit reports to get the effectiveness of the internal controls and compliance with the
regulatory bodies. Audit Committee also provides necessary oversight, gives recommendations,
and monitors implementation of such recommendations.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

Mortgages is a long duration product and a high involvement buying decision for the customer -
which involves frequent and regular interactions. To enable a transparent, convenient, and hassle-
free customer experience, our dedicated team of customer service supported with transparent
operations and strong technology infrastructure, helps us to be responsive to our customers thereby
maintaining high standards of customer service. Digital communication, continuous customer
feedback and transparency remain key focus areas of the Company while engaging with customers.
The Company strives towards improving and strengthening its customer experience by
transitioning from query / complaint resolution to first time right delivery to customers.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company earned a Profit After Tax (PAT) of INR 22,676 (in
thousands) as compared to Profit after Tax of INR 29,559 (in thousands) in the previous financial
Year.
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The loan book of Company reduced from Rs. 1,158.55 (thousands) as on March 31, 2023 to Rs.
(thousands) as on March 31, 2024. It had Cash and Cash equivalent of Rs. 9,179 (in thousands) as
on March 31, 2024 (Rs. 8,667 thousands in previous year).

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company ensures that provisions of various Labour Laws, other employment regulations are
duly complied and met with. The Company has zero tolerance for sexual Harassment at work place
and has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition, and redressal of sexual Harassment at
workplace in line with the provisions of the sexual Harassment of women at Workplace (Prevention,
prohibition, and redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder for the prevention and
redressal of complaints of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace.
For and on behalf of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Date: 6th September, 2024 Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Gurugram Gagan Aggarwal Kaushik Ramakrishnan
Whole-time Director Director

DIN: 10423472 DIN: 08303198
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Annexure- |11

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

CLIX HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Clix Housing Finance Private Limited)
CIN: U65999DL2016PLC308791

Plot No. 23, 5th Floor, Govind Lal Sikka

Marg, Rajendra Place, 110008 New Delhi.

We report that:

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by CLIX HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED (hereinafter referred as
‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Company’s Responsibilities

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the maintenance of secretarial
record under the Companies Act, 2013 and compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other
applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards. Further the Company’s management and the Board of
Directors are also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate systems and process,
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to identify, monitor and ensure
compliances with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Auditor’s Responsibilities Statement

Our responsibility is only to examine and verify those compliances on a test basis and express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the Company. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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Limitations

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is
an unavoidable risk that some Misstatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the Secretarial Auditing
Standards as prescribed by Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

Further, we conducted the secretarial audit by examining the secretarial records including minutes,
documents, registers, other records and returns related to the applicable laws on the Company etc.
made available to us. The management has confirmed that the records submitted to us are the true and
correct. We have also relied upon representation given by the management of the Company for certain
areas which otherwise requires physical verification.

Basis of Opinion

We have followed the audit practices, secretarial auditing standards and processes as were applicable
and appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification in some cases were done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected
in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion. We also believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Report on Secretarial Records and Compliances made thereunder

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on March 31, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board- processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions
of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations(LODR), 2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
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Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021: Not Applicable

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue And Listing Of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; Not
applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to issue and Share Transfer
Agent during the financial year under review.

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity shares) Regulations, 2021; -
Not Applicable

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; - Not
Applicable

Vi. The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 rules,
regulations, master-directions and guidelines made issued thereunder as are specifically
applicable to Housing Finance Company on test basis and relying upon the representation
made by the Company and its officers for the system and mechanism framed by the Company
for compliances made thereunder and the Company is generally regular in fillings with
National Housing Bank (NHB).

We have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following: -

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India which were
generally complied.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (“NSE”).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Standards, Master Circular/ Directions and Guidelines etc. mentioned above except

Subject to the Compliance of regulation 57(5) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations (LODR), 2015, the NSE has imposed a

penalty of Rs. 1,000 plus applicable GST i.e. Rs. 1,180 on the Company vide its letter dated 15t

May, 2023.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company has been duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice(s) have been given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Committee
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance and,
in case of shorter notice, compliance as required under the Act has been made by the Company and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings have been carried out with requisite majority
of the members of the Board or committees as the case may be. Further there is no case of views of the
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dissenting members as per the recordings in the minutes of the meetings of the Board or Committee(s)
thereof.

We further report that there are adequate systems and process in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliances with the applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has the following specific events/actions
having major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, standards & guidelines, if any, as may be referred to above:

During the period under review,

i. The Members of the Company in their Extra-ordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) held on 19t July,

ii.

iii.

2023 had altered the Capital Clause (Clause V) of Memorandum of Association of the Company.
Consequently, the Share Capital of the Company has been increased from Rs. 55,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Fifty Five crores only) divided into 5,50,00,000 (Five crore Fifty Lakhs) equity shares of
Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to Rs. 55,20,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Five crores and Twenty Lakhs
only) divided into 5,52,00,000 (Five crore Fifty Two Lakhs) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten
only) each by the creation of additional 2,00,000 (Two Lakhs) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten only) each.

The Board of the Company in its meeting held on 26t July, 2023 has approved a right issue of
2,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, at nominal value aggregating to Rs. 20,00,000/- (Rupees
Twenty lakhs only) to its holding Company namely “Clix Capital Services Private Limited” and the
same has been allotted by Board on 15t August, 2023.

The Board of the Company in their meeting held on 7th July, 2022 has in principally approved the
merger and the draft scheme of the amalgamation of the Company with its Holding Company i.e.
Clix Capital Services Private Limited. Consequently, an application seeking “No Objection” from
‘National Housing Bank’ (NHB) has been filed by the Company. Further the Company has also
issued notices (CAA-9) to the regulators pursuant to section 233 of the Act read with rule 25(1)
of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

However no further actions have been taken by the Company in this regard till the closure of the
financial year.

For VKC & ASSOCIATES
(Company Secretaries)
Unique Code: P2018DE077000

Sd/-
CS Ishan Khanna
Partner
ACS No. A53517
C P No. 24258
UDIN: A053517F000449572
Peer Review Certificate: 1955/2022

Date: 27th May, 2024
Place: New Delhi
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INDI A

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
'i'o the Members of Clix Housing Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Clix tiousing Finance Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements including a summary of
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Ind

AS financial statements”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under section
133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit/loss {including other comprehensive
income), its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinjon

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India {“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements arid the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the ind AS
financial statements. '

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other infermation. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Director’s report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor's report.

DMKH & CO.,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

803-504, Ashok Heights, NICCO Clrele, Near Bhuts School, 0id Na 2. ol

Tol : 02226824800 / 4900 | Email : contact@diiition.in | www.dmkheza.in
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Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read the Director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance {including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters reiated to going cencern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic aiternative but to do so. '

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.




Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of this ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal controi.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conciude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1)

As required by the Companles (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we report in “Annexure 1”, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disgualified as on March 31, 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure 2”;

g. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration
is not applicabie.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

(if) The Company did not have any long-term contracts mcludmg derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses. 4




(i} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

(iv)
(a}

(b)

(c)

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, fend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party {“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e}, as provided under (a) and (b} above,
contain any material misstatement.

(v} The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the
compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable.




(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. As proviso
to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting
under 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as
per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024.

For DMKH & Co.

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No,,

o

Manish Kankani
Partner S
Membership No. 158020
UDIN: 24153020BKAKGK3640
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 27, 2024




INDLA

ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Clix Housing Finance Limited (“the
Company”) on the ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information, explanations
and written representation given to us by the management and the books of account and other
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

{1}
(a) (A) The Company did not have any Property, Plantand Equipment and accordingly, reporting
under clause (i)(a)(A) and (i){b)of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable,

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(c) The title deeds of the immovable properties which are “held for sale” {(other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
lessee) disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements are not held in the name of the Company.
Details of such assets are given below:

Description | Gross Held  in the | Whether Period held | Reason for not being held in

of property carrying | name of promoter, name of Company

value {in Rs director or ‘

thiousands) their

' relative or

employee
Buildings 18,725% | Multiple No 0-2 year The Comparny has
{Residential borrowers [15 repossessed properties
Flats) Nos] ' - | under SARFEAS! Act, 2002
{15 Nos] ‘ ‘ taken as collateral against
loans given to customers.
L . ‘

*Gross Carrying Value — Cost to Seli = Net Carrymg Value (19 725 6,540 13,185)

(d) The Company did not have any Property, Plant and Equment {including Right of Use
assets) during the year, hence question of revaluation does not arise. The Company has
not revalued its Intangible Assets during the year. Accordmgly, reporting under clause
(i){d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

{e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March 31,
2024 for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (as amended in 20016} and ruies made thereunder.

DMKH & CO.
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(1)
(a) The Company is in the business of non-banking financial services consequently, does not hold
any inventory. Therefore, reporting under clause {ii){a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicahle.

(b} {b} The Company has not obtained any sanctioned working capital limit at any point of time
during the year, from banks and/or financial institutions, on the basis of security of current
assets. Therefore, reporting under clause (ii){b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(iif)
{a) The Company’s principal business is to give loans and therefore, reporting under clause {iii)(a)
and (e) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of
the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided by the
Company during the year are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) Inrespect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, we report
that the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
the repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular except for certain instances as
below: (Rs. in thousands)

Outs'tan'ding of overdue loans as on March 31, 2024

Particulars — Days Past Due Principal & Interest No. of Cases
Overdue
1-30 30,566 22
31-90 76,346 33
More than 90 (Excluding Interest) 55,800 26
Total 1,62,712 81

{d} In respect of the aforesaid loans and advances in the nature of loans, the details of amount
which is overdue for more than ninety days is as below:

No. of Principal Overdue Remarks
Cases (Rs. in thousands)
26 55,800 MNecessary steps have been taken by the
Company for recovery of the principal.

{e) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) The provisions of Section 185 are not applicable to the Company as the Company has not
provided any loans to Directors or to any other person in whom the director is interested.
Further, the provisions of Section 186 are not applicable to the Company being a Housing
Finance Company, as it is engaged in the business of providing loans.




(viti)

(x)

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014 {as amended). Accordingly,
reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any of the
products of the Company under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules framed
there under.’

The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory
dues including Goods and Services tax (GST), provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
any other matetrial statutory dues applicable to it.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, at the year end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} There are no dues with respect to GST, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income

(c)

(d)

(e)

tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess, which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

We have not come across any transaction which were previously not recorded in the books
of account of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority. '

The Company did not obtain any money by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause (ix){c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds have
been raised on short-term basis.

On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, the Company
does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, accordingly reporting under clause
(ix)(e) and {ix){f) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

{a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer/further public offer (including

debt instruments) during the year. Therefore reporting under clause (x){a) of paragraph 3 of
the Order is not applicable. s '




(b)

(xi)

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore,
reporting under clause (x){b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(a} During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in

(b)

{c)

(xii)

(xiif)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

{(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices In India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management.

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government by
the auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of this report.

There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year and upto
the date of this report.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under clause {xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable.

All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinien, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its husiness.

We have considered the Internal Audit Report of the Company issued till date, for the period
under audit.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with them during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

As per the information and explanations provided to us and based on the overall operations
of the Company, the Company is not required to obtain registration under section 45-IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act.

The Company has a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the National Housing Bank
(NHB) under section 29A of the National Housing Bank Act 1987, for conducting Housing
Finance activities.




{xvii)

(xviii)

{xix)

(c} The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Core Investment

Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“Directions”) by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi)(c) and (d) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
reporting under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other infermation accompanying the tnd AS financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which cause us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of this
audit report and that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting
under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

For DMKH & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No,216886W

Manish Kankani Wk,
Partner * St
Membership No.: 158020
UDIN: 24158020BKAKGK3640
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 27, 2024




INDIA

.DMKH & CO.

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2{i) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in our
Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of Clix Housing Finance Limited on the Ind
AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause {i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Clix Housing
Finance Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Respcnsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
- of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit tc obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internat financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financlal Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only In accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or dispasition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of cur informaticn and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For DMKH & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registraticn No. 116886W

/{7 ) {ﬁ%ﬂ*&t‘%’“ﬁ
, ) T ?’“\ -

Manish Kankani
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2024



Clix Housing Finance Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR*thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

As at As at
Motes.
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalents SA 9,179 8,667
Bank balance other than above 5B 17,280 15,372
Loans 6 615,743 1,056,735
Investments 7 16,987 16,190
Qther financal assets 9 105,295 13,422
Non- financal assets
Current tax assets {net) 16,106 5,249
Deferred tax assets (net) 28 9,627 16,244
Cther Intangible assats 8 10,185 11,664
Other non- financial assets 10 ' 14,132 14,595
Assets held for sale 13,185 35 891
Tatal assets 821,719 1,394,429
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables ) 11
Trade Payabies )
a) Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and smali 1,341 555
entarprises
b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 22,086 14,691
enterprises and small enterprises
Debt Securitles 12 - 406,253
Borrowings {other than Debt Securities) 13 175,971 308,713
Other financial labillties 14 22,127 89,124
Provislons ‘ ) 15 1,119 938
Other non-finandial Liabitilies 16 797 1,211
Totat lahilites 223,441 821485
Etjuity
Equity share capital 17 552,000 550,000
Other equity 18 46,278 22,944
Total Equity 598,278 572,944
Total liabilites and Equity 821,719 1,394,429
Material accounting policies 3
The accompanylng notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our repert of even date
For DMKH & Co, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Clix Housing Finance Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No. 116886k

w

Rakesh Kaul

Manish Kankani N K Ramakrishnan
Partner [\ Director Director
Membership No.: 158020 $§ DIN: 03356665 DIN: 08303198
Place: Murnbai Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbaj

Date: 27 May 2024 o Date: 27 May 2024

ate: 27 May 2024
A~y L
Amit Kumaf Jain Vinu’mrla
Chief Financia! Officer Company Secretary

Memmbership No: A17923

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Statement of Profit and loss for the period ending 31 March 2024

{Al' amcunt in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Notes Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Revenue from operations
Interest Income
Feas and commission Income

Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain on derecognition of financlal instruments under

amortised cost categery

Total revenue from operations

Other Income
Total Income

Expenses
Finance Costs
Fees and commission expense
Impairment on financial instruments
Employee Benefits Expense
Amaortization
Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit before tax

Tax Expense:

(1) Current tax

(2] Current tax for eariier years
(3) Deferred tax charge / {cradit)
Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income
A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liahitity
Income Tax Effect
B. 1tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income , net of income tax
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Earnings per equity share of Rs, 10/- each

Basic (INR)

Dilutad {INR)

Nomina! value per share (INR)

Material accounting policies

19 102,688 162,845
20 7,068 12,166
21 3,450 8,937
10,147 86,769
123,353 270,717
22 1,753 4,866
125,106 275,583
23 53,003 130,339
24 1,582 4,343
25 12,367 71,044
26 10,506 11,822
8 1,479 1,479
27 15,974 19,439
95,911 238,966
29,195 36,617

28
- 23,375

{128) -

6,647 (16,217)
22,676 29,559
{119) 292
30 {73)
{89) 219
22,587 29,778

29
0.41 0.54
0.41 0.54
10.00 10.00

3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For DMKH & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Reglstration No. 116886W _aamean

/“k ,
Manish Kankani

Partner
Membership No.: 158020

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Rakesh Kaul
Director
DIN: 03386665

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024

e s

Amit Kumar Jain
Chief Financial Gfficer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024

A

K Ramakrishnan
Director
DIN: 08303198

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2024

i

Company Secretary
Membership No: A17923

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024



Clix Housing Finance Limitad
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended-31 March 2024

(Al amount in INR thousands, except for shore data unless stated otherwise)

For DIVIKH & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICA} Firm Registration No, 116886W

hY
Manish Kankani
Parther
Membership No.: 158020

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2024

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2024 Year enced 31 March 2023
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 29,195 36,617
Adjusted for:
Net gain on fair value changes {3,450) {8,937}
Share based payment 748 791
Provision for employee benefit expenses [{181) 298
Impairment on financial instruments 12,367 71,044
Amortization 1,479 1,478
Interest on income-tax refund (217) {e3)
Interest Income on fixed deposits {961) {2,611}
Operating profit hefore working capital changes 38,981 98,588
Adjusted for net chunges in working capital
Decraase in financial assets and other assets 560,321 832,558
Decrease in financial lfabtlities and other liabilities (58,938) (34,012}
Taxes (paid)/refund receivad {net} (4,512) [28,122)
Net Cash genervled from operating activitles 535,802 869,052
Cash flows from investing actlvities
Movement In mytual funds {net) 2,653 153,330
Purchase of Pass through certificates - (5,315}
Investment in fixed deposits more than 90 days maturity {1,908) {13,840}
Interest income on fixed deposits 961 2,611
Net Cush generated from Investing wctivities 1,706 136,836
Cash Rows from financing activities
Praceeds from issuance of equity share capital 2,000 -
Proceeds from Inter Corporate Loan 205,840 -
Repayment of Inter Corporate Loan {205,940) {1,100,000)
Repayment of term loan - {561,857)
Movement in Non Convertible Debentures (406,253) 2,506
Proceeds from Borrowing against Securitised Portfolio 28,412 381,483
Repayment of Borrowing against Securitised Portfolio (161,155) {72,770}
Net Cash generated from/{used in) financing activities {536,995) (1,350,638}
Net {decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents 512 {344,750}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8,667 353,417
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9,179 8,667
Notas :
Components of cash and cash equivalents balance include:
Balances with banks:
- Current accounts 9,179 7,604
-Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months - 1,063
tash and cash eguivalants at the end of the year 3,179 8,667

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

‘- o & y

Rakesh Kaul
Birector
DIN: 03386665

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024

Amit Kﬂarlain

Chief Finoncial Officer

Place; Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024

@/’/
/
K Ramakrishnan

Director
DIN: 08303198

Pface: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2024

[+]

Vinud R Kalra
Company Secretary
Membership Mo; A17823

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024



Clix Housing Finance Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

a. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at % April 2023 Changes In Equity |Restated balance as| Changes in equity(Balance as at 31 March 2024
Share Capital due at 1 April 2023 share capital
to prior period during the
errors current year
550,000 - - 2,000 552,000
Balance as at 1 April 2022 Changes In Equity |Restated balance as| Changes in equity(Balance as at 31 March 2023
Share Capital due at 1 April 2022 share capital !
to prior period during the
errors currant year
550,000 - - - 550,000
b, Other Equity
Particulars - Reserves and surplus Other Total
Share based Statutory reserve | Retalned earning | Comprehensive
payment raserve Income
Balance at 1st April 2023 1,492 17,825 1,149 2,476 22,944
Profit/{i.oss) for the year - - 22,676 - 22,676
Remeasurements of defined benefit Hiability - - - {89) (89)
ESQP cost for the year 1,250 - - - 1,250
Share Based Payments {501} - - - {501)
Transfer out of Reserves - 4,517 {4,517) - -
Balance at 31st March 2025 2,241 22,342 19,308 2,387 46,278
Particulars Raserves and surplus Other Total
Share based Statutory reserve | Retained eaming| Comprehensive -
payment reserve Incame
Balance at 1st April 2022 701 11,869 (22,454) 2,257 (7,627)
Frofit/(Loss) for the year - - 29,559 - 29,559
Remeasurements of defined benefit Hability - - - 219 219
ESOP cost for the year 791 - - - 791
Transfer out of Reserves - 5,956 {5,956) - -
Balance at 31st March 2023 1,492 17,825 1,149 2,476 22,944

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For DMIKH & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Fiem Registration No. 116885\ e,

%}*& .
Manish Kankani

Partner A\
Membership No.: 158020

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Rakesh Kaul
Director
DIN: 03386665

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024

P
Amit Kumar Jain
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024

)

/
o

K Ramakrishnan’
Director
DIN: 08303198

Place: Mumbat
Date: 27 May 2024

[
nd R Kalra

Company Secretary
Membership No: A17923

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2024



Clix Housing Finance Limitad
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount In INR thousands, except for share data unlass stated otherwlse)

Corporate information

Clix Housing Finance Limited is a public limited company (w.e.f 20 September 2020} domlciled in India and incorporated on 2 December 2016 under the
provisicns of Companies Act, 2013 with CIN-U85939D1.2016PLC308791. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Clix Capital Services Private Limited, The
Company Is classified under middle layer as per scale based framework applicable from 01 October 2022, The Company has received certification of registration
dated 18 August 2017 from Matlonal Housing Bank 'NHB') with registration ho.08.0157.17. The Company is primarily engaged In lending activities. The
Company does not accapt deposits from the public. The Company’s registered office |s at Aggarwal Corporate Tower, Plot No. 23, 5th Floor, Govind Lal Sikka
Marg, Rajendra Piace, New Delhi- 110008, India.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company had approved a Scheme of Amalgamation (“the Scheme”) for
Amaigamation with its Holding Company , Clix Capital Services Private Limited. The Company approached all the stakeholders including Reserve Bank of Indla
(RB!) for No objection for the same, RBI had vide its letter dated October 27, 2022 and January 31, 2023 glven its no objection for the Holding Company & CHFL,
respectively. In the interim both the companies are re-evaluating the option of going ahead with the Scheme,

(i) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indlan Accounting Standards {Ind AS} as per the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and presented in the format
prescribed tn the Division Il to Schedule to the Companies Act, 2013 along with other relevant provisicns of the Act, the Master Direction - Non-Banking
Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2021 read with Master Diraction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial
Company — Scate Based Regulation) Directions, 2023.

These fingncial statements were authorized for Issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 27, 2024, The financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis as the Managerment is satisfied that the Company shall be able to continue its business for the foreseeable future and no material uncartainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the going cencern assumption. In making this assessment, the Management has considered a wide range of
Information relating to present and future conditions, inctuding future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

{1i} Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets and liabilities deslgnated at falr value through profit or loss
{FYTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value. The financial statemeants are presented in Indisn Rupees (INR} and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

{ii1) Presentation of financial statament

The Company presents its balance sheet In order of liquidity. Financial assets and financial ltabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are
only offset and reported net when the Company has an unconditional iegally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a
future event, and the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following clrcumstances:

A. The normal course of business

B. The event of default

C. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties.

The Company prepares and presents its 8alance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity In the format prescribed by
Division [Il of Schedule Il to the Act. The Statemeant of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash
Flows'.




¢lix Kousing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amount In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

Material accounting pelicies

The Company adopted the amendment to the Ind AS-1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' as notifled by the MCA vide notification dated March 31, 2023
relating to 'Disclosure of Accounting Policy Information’ frem April 01, 2023, Although the amendmaents did not result n any changes In the accounting peiicies
thernselves, they Impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments raquire the disclosure of ‘material' rather than ‘signiflcant’ accounting policies. The amendrhents also provide guidance on applications of
materiality.disclosures of accounting policies, assisting entries to provide useful entry, specific accounting policy information that user need to understand
other information to this financial statements.

3.1 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and fiabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting pericd. Although
these estimetes are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or Habllitles in future periods. Changes In estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

3.1.1 Business model assessment

Classification and measuremeant of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of principal and Interest and the business model test. The
Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how Company's financial assets are managed together to achleve a particular business
objectlve, This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant avidence including how the performance of the assets s evaluated and measured
including how these are managed and compensated to the managers of the assets. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to thelr maturlty to understand the reason for their dl sposal and whether the reasons
are consistent with the objective of the business fer which the asset was held.

Menltoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be
appropriate and if 1t Is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

3.1.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments Is the price that would be recelved to sell an assat or paid to transfer a hakility in an orderly transaction in the principal
{or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under cutrent market conditions (i.e., an exit price} regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using anather valuation technique. When the fair values of financizl assets and financial labilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be detived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation technigues that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required In establishing falr values. Judgements
and estimates include considerations of liguidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk {both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments,
correlation and volatility. '

3,1.3 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The company's FIR methodalogy, recognises interest Income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over
the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different Interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of
the product life eycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and fife-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to
India’s base rate and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

3.1.4 Impairment loss on financiz| asset

The measurement of impairment lasses across all categories of financlal assets requires Judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant Increase in credit risk. These estimates are
drivan by a number of factors, changes in which can resu™t in different levels of aliowances.

The company’s ECL calculations are outputs of compiex madels with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their
interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are censidered accounting judgements and estimates include:

I. The Company’s internal model, which assigns prokability of default {PD).

Il. The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase In credlt risk and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a
LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment

I1I. The segmentation of financlal assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basls

IV. Development of ECL models, Inclugding the various formulas and the choice of Inputs

v. Determination of assoclations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economlc inputs, such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect
on PDs, Exposure at Default {EAD) and Loss given default {LGD)

VI, Selection of forward-iooking macroecenomic scenarios and thelr probability weightings, to derive the econamic inputs into the ECL models

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models In the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

3.1.5 Deflned employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratulty plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments In the future. These Include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary Increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumpticns are reviewed at each reporting date.

3.1.6 Share hased payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms
and conditions of the grant, This estimate aisc requires determination of the most appropriate Inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the
share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumgptions about them.

3.1.7 Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation risk inherant to Its cperations, As a result, it
is involved in various litigatlon, arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings In the ordinary course of the Company's buslness.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic beneflts In relation to a specific case and considers such outflows to be probahle, the
Company records a provision against the case, Where the probability of outflow Is considered to be remots, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be
made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Glven the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes inta account a number of factors including legal
advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgernant is required to conclude on these estimates.




Clix Housing Financa Limlted
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

3.1.8 Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116, Identtfication of a lease requires slgnificant judgment.
The Company uses significant judgement In assessing the lease term {including anticipaied renewals) and the applicable discount rate, The Company
determines the leasa term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both pericds covered by an optien to extend the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and perlods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reascnably certain not to exercise that
option. In assessing whether the Comgany s reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend 3 lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it
considers ali relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic Incentive for the Company to exarcise the option to extend the lease, or not to exerclse
the option to terminate the fease. The Company revises the lease term If there Is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease, The discount rate is
generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluatad or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash balances in bank, and highly llguid investments with maturity perlod of three months or less
from the date of investment.

3.3 Revenue recoghition

a} Interest and similar income

Interest income, for ali financlal instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, is
recorded using the effective interest rate (FIR), EIR Is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial Instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation takes into account all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable and
are an Integral part of the EIR, but not future credit osses.

b} Foreclosure charges and other faes
Foreclosure charges and other fees which include chegue bou'ﬂce charges, penal fee, legal charges and prepayment chargas etc. are recognised as income when
there is certainty regarding the receipt of pavment.

¢} Dividend income

Dividend income Is recognized when the Company’s right to recelve the payment is established, it 1s probable that the econemic benefits assoclated with the
dividend will flow ta the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

d)} Income on derecognized (Assigned) loans

Galns arising out of direct assignment transactions comprises of the difference between interest on the loan portfolic and the applicable rate at which the
direct assignment Is entered info with the assignee, also known as the right of excess interest spread (EIS). The future EIS basis the scheduled cash flow on
execution of the transaction, discounted at the applicable rate entered Inte with the assignee is recorded upfront in the statement of profit and loss.

e} Other Income
Other Income represents income earned from the activities incldental to the businass and is secognized when the right to receive the income is established as

per the terms of the contract

3.4 Foreign currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented In (ndian Rupees {INR] which is also the Company's functicnal currency.

Transactions In forelgn currencles are initially recorded by the Cornpany at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognltion. Income and expenses in forelgn currencies are initially recorded by tha Company at the exchange rates prevalling on the date of the
transaction.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date and
exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary ltems that ara measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the-dates of the initlal
transactions. Nor-monetary items measured at falr value In a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at tha date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or joss arising on translatior of non-monetary items measurad at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in falr value of the item {i.e., translation differences on Items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are alsc recognized in QCI
or profit or loss, respectively).




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(all ameunt tn INR thousands, except for share data unless stated atherwise)

3.5 Property, plant and equipment (PPE} and intangible assets

PPE

PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to Its working condition for its Intended use} less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these wili flow to the
Company and the cost of item can be measured rellably, Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part inltlally recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future econocmic benefits are
expected from Its use or disposal. Any gain or l0ss arising on de-recognition of the asset {celculated as the difference between tha net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognlsed.

Intangible fixed assets )
The Company's intangible assets mainly include the value of computer software. An intangible asset is recoghised only when its cost can be measured reliably
and it s probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the company.

Intangible essets acquired separately are measured on Initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carrled at cost less any
accumuiated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, If any.
3.6 Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation

Owned assets
{a} Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lease term as stated in the |ease agreement or useful life of the asset whichever is lower.
(b} intangibla assets consisting of computer software are depreciated on a straight-line basis over a perlod of 5 years from the date of ready to use.
{c) Depreciation on other owned fixed assets is provided on straight line method at the rates, computed based on estimated useful life of those assets as
prascribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful livas are, as follows:

- Computers - 3years
- Office equipment - 5 years
- Furniture and fixtures - 10 years
- Computer softwares® - 10 years

* The useful lives for Computer Software as per the prescribed Schedule |l rates under Part C of the Companies Act Is 6 years. However, the Company 1s taking
useful life of 10 years for Computer Software basis the Management's internal assessment of estimate of useful life.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate
3.7 tmpairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impalrment based cn internal/external factors. An
Impalrment loss is recognlsed wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverahle amount is the greater of the
assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing valug in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using @ pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken intc account, if available. If ne siich transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

After Impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful iife,
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3.8 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present cbligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, It is probable that an outflew of
resources embodying economic banefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions {excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to thelr present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date. If the effact of the time value of money is materia!, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the lizbiiity. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognisad as
a finance cost.

3.9 Contingent liabilities and assets

The Company does net recognize a contingent liabiity but discloses its existence in the financial statermnents, Contingent liability is disclosad in the case of:

- A present cbligation arising from past events, when it is not probakle that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired to settle the
chligation - .

- A present ohligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate Is possible

- A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of cutflow of resources is remote

Contingent liabilitles are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Contihgent assets are not recognlsed. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an inflow of economic benefits is probabla.

3.10 Retirement and other employee benefits
The Company’s abligation towards varlous empleyee benefits has been recoghised as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
All employee benefits payable/ avallable within twelve months of rendering the service are Classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries,
wages and bonus etc., are recoghised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the perlod In which the employes renders the related service.

Defined contribution plan
Provident fund is a defined contribution plan. The contribution towards provident fund has been deposited with Regional provident fund commlssioner and is
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit plan
The Company pays gratuity tc employees who retire or reslgn after a minimum perlod of five years of continuous service, The Company has choosen not to
fund the gratuity lizbilitles of the plan but instead carry a provision based on actuarial valuation in its books of accounts.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprises of actuarial gains and losses on benefit obligations. The Company recognizes these items of
remeasurements immediately in other comprehensive income and 1! the other expenses related to defined benefit plans as employee benefit expenses In their
profit and loss account. '

when the benefits of the plan are changed, or when & plan is curtailed or settlement occurs, the portlon of the changed benefit related to past service by
employaes, or the gain or loss on curtailment or settlement, is recognized immediately in the profit o7 joss account when the plan amendment or when a
curtailment or settlement occurs.

Other long-term benefits — Compensated absences
Entitlements to annuat leave are recognised whan they accrue to employees. Balance leaves, If any can be encashed at the time of retirement/ termination of
employment. The Company determines the liability for such accumulated leave entitlements on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the year end.

The liability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long term benefits Is accrued in the books of account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out
by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gzins and losses, the effact of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability and the return on pian assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immedlately 'n the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subseguent periods.
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3.11 Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pald to the taxation authorlties in accordance with
Income tax Act, 1061, Income Computation and Disclosure Standards and other applicable tax laws. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted at the reporting date.

Current Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outslde profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Current tax items are recognised in carrelation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Defarred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liabllity method on temporary differances between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differances, and the carry
forward of unused tax cradits and unused tax losses can be utilised,

The tarrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviawed at each reporting date and reduced tc the extent that it is no longer probabie that sufficient
taxable profit will be avallable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised deferred tzx assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that futura taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liabllity is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside proflt or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax Items are recognised in correlation to the underlving transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. '

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

3.12 Earning per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attribytable to equity shareholders by the welghted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the perfed. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fractlon of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting vear,

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the perlod are adjusted for the effects of ali dilutive potential equity shares.

3.13 Share based payments

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and athers providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date. ]

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a stralght line basis over the vesting periad, based on
the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the
Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest, The Impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, 1s racognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflacis the revised estimate, with & correspending adjustment to the Share Based Payments
Reserve,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options 1s reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.
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3.14 Financial instrumeants

A financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and afinanclal liability or equity instrument of ancther entity.

3.14,1 Financial Assets

3.14.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement )
Financial assets, with the exceptlon of loans and advances to customers, are Inttially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a

party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument. Loans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are dishursed to the customers. The
classification of financial instruments at Initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management’s intentlon when acquiring them.
All financial assats are recognisad initially at fair value plus, In the case of financial assets not recorded at falr value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are attributable to the acaulsition of the financialt asset.

3.14.1.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
Debt instruments at amertised cost
Debst instruments ang equity instruments at falr value through profit or loss (FYTPL)
Debt Instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCL)
Equity instrument measured at fzir vaiue through other comprehensive income {FYTOCH)

3.14.1.3 Debt instrumeants at amortised costs
A ‘debt instrument’ ts measurad at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i. The assetis held within a husiness model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

i. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of princlpal and interest (SPRI) on the principal amount
outstanding, :

Business mode!l: The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, where the Company's objective is
solely to collect the contractuai cash flows from the assets, the same is measured at amortized cost or where the Company’s objective s to collact both the
contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets, the same is measured at falr value through other comprehensive Income (FVTOCI). If
neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purgoses), then the financial assats are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and
measured at FYTPL.

SPPl: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect and earn contractual cash flows (f.e. measured at amortized cost), the Company assesses whether
the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the ‘SPP! test’). In making this assessment, the Company considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement I.e. interast Includes only censideration for the time value of meney, cradit
risk, ther basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms Introduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The
amortized cost, as mentioned above, is computed using the effective interest rate method.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EiR) method less Impairment,
Amortised cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profitand
lass.

- 3.14.1.4 Debt instrutments at FYOCI
A ‘debt Instrument’ Is classified as at the FVTCCI if both of the following criteria are metl:

i. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financla! assets,
il. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt insiruments included within the FVTOC| category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are
racognized In the other comprehensive income {OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impalrment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl s reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FYTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the E\R method.
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3.14.1.5 Debt instrument at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt Instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized
cost or as FVTOU!, is classified as at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FYTOCI criteria, as at FYTPL. Howevar, such
election is allowed only If doing so reduces or eliminates & measurement or reccgnition Inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized In the P&L.

3.14.1.6 Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measurad at fair value, Equity Instruments which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equlty
instruments, the Company may make an Irrevocahle alection to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Compary makes such election on an instrument-by- instrument basis. The classification is made on Inftial recognition and Is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCl. There Is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of Investment. However, the company may transfer the
cumulative gain or lass within eaultv.

Equity instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized In the P&L.

3.14.2 Financial Liabilities
3.14.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it1s
designated as such on Initial recognition, All financial Hiabilities are recognised initially at fair value andl, in the case of loans and borrowings and payakles, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The company’s finandial lizbillties include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financiaf instruments.

3,14.2.2 Classification and Subsequent measurement - Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

financtal liablliities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liablities designated upon Initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are Incurred for the purpese of
repurchasing in the near term. This category aise includes derivative financlal instruments entered intc by the company that are not designated as hedging
Instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 108. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses an liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon inftial recognition at fair velue through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if
the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfiad. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes n own credit risk are recognized
in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subseguently transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer the cumulative galn or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised In the statement of profit and loss.

3.14.2,3 Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interesi-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequentiy measured at amortised cost using the EIR methed. Galns and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amoriised cost Is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and less. This category generally applies to borrowings.
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3.14.3 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The company doesn't reclassify its financial assets subsequent to thelr Inftial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the
company ‘acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

3.14.4 De recognition of financial assets and liabilities
3.14.4.1 Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the modification of terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent
that, substantially, it bacomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an Impalrment loss has not already
been racorded. If the modificaticn does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in derecognitlon. Based on the
change In cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been
recorded.

3.14.4.2 Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)is derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset have expired. The Company also deracognises the financlal asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer
aualifies for derecosnition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset If, and only if, either:

- The Company has transferrad its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or
+ It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has essumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactlons whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of a financlal asset {the 'original
asset’), but assumes a contractual chligation to pay those cash flows to one cr more entities {the 'eventual reclplents'), when all of the following three
canditions are met:

- The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short
term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

- The Company cannot sell or pledge the orlginal asset other than as security to the eventua! reciplents.

- The Comnany has to remit anv rash flows it callects an behalf of the avential raciniants without matarial delav.

In addition, the Company Is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments In cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the
period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients. ‘

Atransfer only qualifies for derecognition if either;
- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assat, or
- The Company has netther transferred nor retained substantially ail the risks and rewards of the asset,but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party
and is able to exercise that abifity unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has nelther transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retalned control of the asset, the assat continues to be
recognised only to the axtent of the Company’s continuing involvement, in which case, the Company aiso recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset Is measured at the fower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
erancldaratinn the Coamnany ronld he reanired o nav

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchasad option (or both) on the transferred asset, the continuing involvement is measured at the
value the Campany would be required to pay upen repurchase. In the case of a written put option en an asset that is measured at fair value, the extent of the
entity's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the falr value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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3.14.4.2 Financial Liabilities

A financtal'liability is derecognised when the okligation under the liability Is discharged, cancelled or expires, Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
anothar from the same lander on substantially differant terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or medification
is treated as a derecognition of the original llability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrylng velue of the original financial
liahilitv and the cansideration naid ls recoegnised in nrofit ar lass.

3.15 mpairment of financial assets

3.15.1 Overview of the ECL principles

The Company is recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, (in this section all referred to as ‘financlal instruments'). Equity Instruments are not subject to
impairment under IND AS 109,

The ECL allowance Is based on the credit |osses expected to arlse over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected cradit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no
significant increase In credit risk since orlginatien, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss {12mECL}).

The 12mECL Is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financlal instrument that are paosstble within the 12 months
after the repoerting date,

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlylng portfalio of financial instruments.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting perlod, of whether a financial Instrument's credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognltion thls is further expiained in Note 36.2.

Based on the above process, the Company graups its isans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 22mECLs. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit

risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2 or Stage 3.
Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since orlgination, the company records an allowance for the LTECLS. Stage 2

loans also Include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.
Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired (as outlined in Note 6}, The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs.

For financial assets for which the company has no reascnable expectations of recoverlng elther the entire outstanding amount, or 2 proportion thereof,
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is consldered a (partial} derecognition of the financial asset.

3.15.2 The calculatien of ECLs

The Company calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenarios and historical data to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discountad at an
approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entlty In accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the entity expects to recelve.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as fallows:

-PD - The Probability of Defauit is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default mainly happen ata

certain time cver the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and Is stili in the portfolio.

-EAD - The Exposure at Default Is an expasure at a default date.

LGD - The Loss Glven Default s an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It Is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to recelve, including from the realisation of any collateral, It is usually expressed as a
nercentage of the EAD,

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the expected life of a financial instrument.
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The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represenit the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company calculates the the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default cccurring in the 12
manths following the reporting date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant Increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics
are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the Instrument.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired (as defined in Note 6.3) , the Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The
method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Loan commitments: When estimating LTECLs for undrawn lean commitments, the Company estimatas the expected portion of the loan commitment that will
be drawn dawn over Its expected |ife. The ECL Is then based on the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down.

For loan commitments, the ECL is recognised within Provisions.

3,15.3 Ferward looking information
While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On 2
periodic basis, the Company analyses if there s any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by the
Resarve Bank of Indla, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal data. While the Internal estimates of PD,
LGD rates by the Company may ot be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overiays, if any, are embedded in the methodotogy to reflect such
macro-economic trends reasonably.

3.15.4 Assets held for sale
The Company's policy is to sell the repossessed asset. Non-flnancial assets repossessed are transferred to assats held for sale at fair value less cost to sell or
principie outstanding, whichever is less, at the repossession date.

3.15.5 Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety basls the DPD threshold {technical write off / different DPD threshold for different
product basis recovery trend) approved by board OR when asset is deamed Irrecoverable / Recovery is expectad to flow over time ,though not In the immediate
future / it is more economical to sell the asset to third party / Cbligor is deceased and recevery is unlikely. Financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any su bsequent recoveries are
credited to profit and loss account.

3.16 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial Instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation technigques.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderfy transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, The falr value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or llability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumpticns that market participants would use when pricing the asset or {lability, assuming that
market participants act in thair economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inte account a market particlpant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use cr by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relavant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Al assets and llabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the financlal statements are categorised within the falr value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market, prices in active markets for identical assets or liahilities
Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement Is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuatlen technigues for which the lowest level input that is signiflcant to the falr value measurement is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognlsed in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting pericd.

8.17 Dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity helders when the distributicn is authorised and the distribution s ne longer at the
discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded
as 2 liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

3.18 Expenditure

Expenses are recognised on accrual basis and provistons are made for all known losses and liabilities. The Company has also entered Into certain cost sharing
arrangemeants for resources shared with other entitles. The costs allocated to the Company under the cost sharing arrangements are Included in the respeactive
expenses. The costs allocated to other entities under the cost sharing arrangement are shown as amounts recoverable from the respective parties.

3.19 Statement of cash flows
Staterent of Cash Flows Is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities Is reported

using Indirect method adiusting the net profit for the effects of
i) changes during the period in operating recelvables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;

i) non-cash Items such as depreciation, provisions, deferrad taxes, unrealized foreign currency gains and losses; and

iii} Ail other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents {including bank balances) shewn in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not availzble for general use as on the date
of Balance Sheet

4, Recent Indian Accounting Standards / Pronouncentents

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Cempanies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
from time to time. During the year, the MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards which are effective from Aprii 01,
2024.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note 5A: Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks in current accounts
In Deposits with original maturity of fess than three months

Note 5B: Bank balance other than above
Earmarked Balances with Bank *

Total

9,179 7,604

- 1,063
9,179 8,667
17,280 15,372
17,280 15,372
26,459 24,039

* Earmarked balances with banks are held as Margin money/ are under lien. The Company has the complete beneficial

interest on the income earned from these depaosits.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Balances in Current account with:
- Scheduled banks
-Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months

9,179 7,604
- 1,063
9,179 8,667




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 6: Loans ‘
in India
At Amortised Cost
Term loans 640,131 1,068,556
Inter-corporate loan : - 90,000
Total (A} Gross 640,131 1,158,556
Less: Impairment loss allowance ' (24,388) (101,821)
Total {A) Net 015,743 1,056,735
Out of above
Secured by tangible assets (property including land and
builiding) 640,131 1,068,556
Unsecured - 90,000
Total (B) Gross 640,131 1,158,556
Less: Impairment loss allowance . (24,388) (101,821)
Total {B) Net 615,743 ' 1,056,735
Out of above
l.oans in India
Public Sector - -
Others 640,131 1,158,556
Total (C) Gross 640,131 1,158,556
Less: Impairment loss allowance {24,338) (101,821)
Total (C) Net 615,743 1,056,735

Note : No Loans or Advances are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayments (31 March 2023 INR
Nil). :

Securitisation:

The Company uses securitisations as a source of finance. Such transactions generally result in the
transfer of contractual cash flows from portfolios of financial assets to holders of issued debt
securities. Securitisation has resulted in the continued recognition of the securitised assets.

The table below outlines the carrying amounts and fair vatues of all financial assets transferred that
are not derecognised in their entirety and associated liabilities.

Leans and advances measured at amortised cost As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at

amortised cost
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 175,971 308,713
The carrying amount of above assets and liabilities is a reasonable approximation of fair vafue.

207,353 344,924
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Cllx HousIng Finance Limited

Notes to Finanelal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 6.2 Loan Commitrent

8.2 An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances In relation to loan commitment is, as follows:

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 8 Total
Gross tarrying amount opening balance - - - 53,109 - - 53,109
Meaw loan commitment given - - - - . - .
Assets disbursed/cancelled - - - {53,109) - - 153,1.09)
Gross carrying amount closing balance - - - - - - -
6.2.2 Recanciliation of ECL balance [s glven below:

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

ECL aflowance - opening balance - . - 266 - - 266
New |oan commitment glven - - - - ~ - -
Assats dishursed/cancelled - - - {266) - - {266)

ECL allowance - closing balance

Modified Financial Assets

The Company renegotiates loans given to customers in financial difficulties {referred to as forbearance activities, restructuring or rescheduling} to improve the potential of repayment by the
borrower maximize collection opportunittes and to minimise the risk of default. Under the Companies forbearance pelicy, loan forbearance is granted on a selective basis if the customer is
currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk of default, there is evidence that the customer made all reasonable efforts to pay under the ofiginal contractual terms and the
customer is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments and amending the terms of
loan covenants. The Senlor team Risk Management Committee regularly reviews reports on forbearance activities and performance, Upon renegatiation, such accounts are downgraded
basis management -assessment and are subsequently upgraded to Stage 1 only upon observation of satisfactory repayments of one year from the date of such down-gradation and
accordingly loss aliowance is measurad using 12 month probability of default (PR).




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 6.3 Impairment assessment

The references below show where the Company’s impairment assessment and measurement approach is set out
in these notes. It should be read in conjunction with the Summary of significant accounting policies.

- Definition of default

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL
calculations typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments. The Company may
also classify a loan in Stage 3 if there is significant deterioration in the loan collateral, deterloration in the financial
condition of the borrower or an assessment that adverse market conditions may have a disproportionately
detrimental effect on the loan repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of whether an instrument
is in default, the Company also considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in or non repayment of the
loan, When such events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the
borrower as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.
Classification of accounts into stage 2 is done on a conservative basis and typically accounts where contractual
repayments are more than 30 days past due are classified in stage 2. ‘

It is the Company’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3
when none of the default criteria are present. The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once
cured depends on the updated credit grade once the account is cured, and whether this indicates there has been
a significant reduction in credit risk.

- Probability of default

The credit rating provided by the external rating agencies/account level delinquency/ internal matrix has been
considered while assigning Probability of Default (PD} at a portfolio level.The PDs are computed for homogenous
portfolio segments.

- Exposure at default
The outstanding balance as at the reporting date is considered as EAD by the Company. Considering that PD
determined ahove factors in amount at default, there is no separate requirement to estimate EAD.

- Loss given default (LGD)

The Company uses historical loss data/external agency LGD for identified homogenous pools for the purpose of
calculating LGD. The estimated recovery cash flows are discounted such that the LGD calculation factors in the
NPV of the recoveries.

- Significant increase in credit risk

The Company evaluates the loans on an ongoing basts. The Company also assesses if there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since the previously risk taking into consideration both qualitative and quantitative
information . One key factor that indicates significant increase in credit risk is when contractual payments are
mere than 30 days past due or where existing terms are renegotiated. '




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

One time restructuring (OTR) of loan accounts was permitted by RBI vide circulars dated 6 August 2020 reselution
framewoark for COVID-19 related stress' and 'Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector — Restructuring
of Advances' and circulars dated 5 May 2021 'Resolution Framework — 2.0: Resolution of Covid-18 related stress of
Individuals and Small Businesses' and 'Resolution Frameworlk 2.0 — Resolution of Covid-19 related stress of Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises (MSWMEs)'. The Company has considered OTR as an indicator of significant increase
in credit risk and accordingly classified such loans as stage 2. Further, the Company on demaonstration of regular
payment for certain accounts post renegotiation which are subject to no overdue / satisfactory performance
during the specified period as per the respective circular guidelines regarding the reversal cf provisioning and
relevant staging if no other indicators of significant increase in credit risk on such loans.

- Grouping financial assets measured on a collective basis

The Company calculates ECLs on coliective basis on following asset class:-
- Housing portfolic
- Loan against property (LAP) portfolio

Note 6.4 Collateral

The Company holds collateral to mitigate credit risk associated with financial assets.The main types of collateral
and the types of assets, these are associated with are listed in the table below. The collateral presented relates to
instruments that are measured at amortised cost.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Residential & Non-Residential Properties 640,131 1,068,556
Total 640,131 1,068,556

The Company periodically monitors the market vafue of collateral and evaluates its exposure and loan to value
metrics for high risk customers,

The Company did not hold any financial instrument for which no loss allowance is recognised because of collateral
at March 31, 2024, There was no change in the Company’s collateral policy or coltateral quality during the period.

Refer Note 36.2.2 for risk concentration based on loan to value (LTV)




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amount In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 6.5 Transfer of financial assets that are derecognised in their entirely

As a short-term financing approach, the Company has been transferring or selling certain pools of loan
receivables by entering in to direct assignment transactions with Investors for consideration received in cash at
the ihception of the transaction. With an objective of hetter liquidity and risk management, the Company, during
the course of the year, obtains approval of the Investment Committee and Board of Directors through circulating
board resolution for undertaking direct assignment transactions of certain value of loan assets comprising the
collateral based loan receivables at appropriate times during the year, These transactions are carried out after
complying with extant RBI guidelines. Besides direct assignment as alternate financing tool, it is alsc being used as
a effective Balance sheet management through better liquidity and risk management by transfer of assets from
risk averse to risk takers. Such sale/transfer does not change the Company’s business objective of holding financial
assets o collect contractual cash flows. The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control of the financial asset.

The carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets not in default category measured at amortised cost as
on date of transfer during year is INR 62,067 (Assigned - Rs. 68,963) (Previous year: 5,61,995 (Assigned - Rs.
6,23,457)) and consideration received for such transfer is INR 62,067({Previous year; 5,61,995) respectively.

Note 6.6 Risk assessment madel

The Company has designed and operates its risk assessment model that factors in both quantitative as well as
qualitative information on the loans and the barrowers. Depending upon the nature of products, the model uses
historical empirical data to arrive at factors that are indicative of future credit risk and segments the portfolio on
the basis of combinations of these parameters into smaller hamogenous portfolios from the perspective of credit
behavior.
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amount i INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Asat
21 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note 9: Other financial assets

EiS Raceivable 105,348 211,634

Less: Impairment loss allowance {1,591} (2,366)

Security deposit 131 131

Other financial assets 1,407 4,023

Taotat 105,295 213,422
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Note 10: Other nen financial assets

Prepaid expenses 131 790
Advance to suppliers 293 131
Balance with statutory/government authoritias
- GST input credit 13,702 14,074
Total 14,132 14,895
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 11; Payables
Trade Payables
Total outsanding duas of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprisestt 1,341 555
Total outsanding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small 22,086 14,691
Enterprises
Qther Payables
Total outsanding dues of Micre Enterprises and Smali Enterprises# - -
Total outsanding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small - -
Enterprises
23,427 15,246

The following ageing schedule is given for trade payables due for payment

A5 at 31 March 2024

Unbilled / Not due Outstanding far following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years |More than
3 years
Trade Payables
{IJMSME 1,341 - - - - 1,341
{if)Others 21,932 62 0.30 48 44 22,086
{iii} Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
{iv} Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 23,273 62 0.30 48 44 23,427
As at 31 March 2023
Unbilled / Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years |Mare than
3 years
Trade Payables
{iIMSME 508 45 - - - 555
{if)Othars 13,962 729 - - 14,691
{ifi) Disputed dues — MSME ) - - -
{iv} Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 14,471 775 - - - 15,246

#Based on and to the extent of the infermation received by the Company from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

{MSMED Act), the relevant particulars as at the year-and are furnished below:

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

1,341

555

Principal amount due to suppltiers under MSMED Act, as at the year end.

Interast accrued and dus to suppllers under MSMED Act, on the above - -
amount as at the year end

Payment made to suppliers (other than interest} beyond the appointed - -
day, during the year

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than Section 16)
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Seciion 16) - -
Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments - -
already made

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end to suppliers - -
under MSMED Act




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As _at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Mote 12: Debt Securities
{A) At Amortised Cost
Secured
Non-convertible debentures# ]
- From Bank - 406,253

- 406,253

{B) Out of above
Deht securities in India - 406,253
Debt securities outside India - -

- 406,253

(C) Terms of repayment of non covertible debentures as at 31 March 2024

More than 3
Original maturity of NCDs {In no. of days} Due within Lyear Duelto2years Due?2to3 years years Total

Issued at par and redeemable at par - - - _ "

365-730 - - - - -

731 -1085 - - - - -

1096 - 1460 - - " - -

More than 1460 - - - . _
Total ) - - . -

Terms of repayment of non covertible debentures as at 31 March 2023

More than 3

Original maturity of NCDs {In no. of days) Due within 1 year Duelto2vyears Due2to3 years years Total

Issued at par and redeemable at par - - B ~ N

365 - 730 300,000 - - - 300,000

731-1085 100,00 - - - 100,000

1096 - 1460 : - - - - -

More than 1460 - - - _

Total® 400,000 - - : - 400,000

- Interest rate ranges from 9.20% p.a. te 11% p.a. as at 31 March 2023
* INR 1,261. difference on acceunt of FIR adjustment and iNR (7,514} on account of interest accrued but not due.




Cilx Housing Flnance Limited
Notss to Financlai Stataments for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All ameunt in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated ctherwise)

Asat Asat
31 [arch 2024 31 March 2023
Note 13: Borrowlngs [ather than debt securltles)
Secured (at amortised cost)

Borrowing agalnst Securitised Portfollo® 175.971 308,713
Total gross (4] 175,971 308,713
eorrowlngs In Indlz 175,971 308,712
Borrow|ngs cutslde Indla - -
Tatal [B) to tally with (A} 175,971 308,713

*Barrowing against Securitised Portfolio Is assoclatad Ilabillides to sscurltizad asset that has been re-recognised due to nen fulfillment of derecognition criteria as per Ind AS,

The Company has horrowed funds from banks and financial Institutions an the basis of security of current assets. K has flled quarierly returns or statements of cUrrent assets with banks and financial institutiens and the said returns/statements are
In agrasment with toaks of aceounts,
Terms of repayment of Borrowing against Securitised Porifollo as at March 31, 2024

Dua within 1 Year Due 1ta 3 Yesrs Mare than 3 yaars Total
Repayments Mo, of Instalments Amount Mo, of Instalments  Amount  No. of Instalments  Amcunt Mo, of instalments Amount
Monthly repayment schedule 12 12,078 24 25,393 3s1 133,232 427 175,761
Total 12 12,078 24 25,393 291 134,297 427 175,761

- Interest rate ranges from 1L10% p.a, to 11,70% p.a. as at 31 March 2024,
- INR (709} difference on account of EIR adjustment and INR 918 an account of interest accrued but not due,

Terms of repayment of Borrowlng agalnst Securltised Portfolio as at March 31, 2023

Due within 1 Year Due 1 to 3 Yaars More than 3 years Total
Repaymants No. of instelments Amaunt No. of instalmertts ~ Amount Mo, of Instalments  Amount  No. of insialments Amount
Quarterly repayment schadule 12 2,336 24 25,281 375 280,235 411 307,912
Total iz 2,336 24 25,281 375 280,295 413 07,812,

- Interest rats ranges fram 10.85% p.a. to 11.10% p.a. as at 31 March 2023.
- INR {795) difference on account of EIR adjustment and INR 1596 on account of Interast acerued but not due,




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Asat
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note 14: Other financial liabilities

Employee benefit payables 1,441 1,540

Inter company payables 3,212 3,226

Advances received from customer 17,474 84,358

Total 22,127 89,124
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Note 15: Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
- Leave encashment
- Gratuity payable

Other provisions

Total

378 352
504 349
237 237
1,119 038

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note 16: Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable
Total

797

1,211

797

1,211




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data uniess stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Note 17: Equity Share Capital

Authorised :
552,000 550,000
55,200,000 (31 March 2023: 55,000,0600) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each
552,000 550,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up: ‘ i
552,000 550,000

55,200,000 (31 March 2023: 55,000,000) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each

Total 352,000 550,000




Clix Houslng Finance Limited
Neates to Financial Statements for the year ended 32 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

The raconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at tha end of the reporting period.

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

No. of shares INR In D00's No, of shares INR In 000's
Equity Share at the keginning of year 55,000,000 550,000 55,000,000 550,000
Add: Shares issued during the year 200,000 2,000 - -
Equity share at the end of year 55,200,000 552,000 55,000,000 550,000

During the current year the Company has ssued 2,00,000 Equity shares {Face Value INR 20 per share] at !NR 10 per share to Holding company for consideration of INR
2000,

Shares held by holding Company / ultimate halding company and/ or thelr subsidiaries/ associates

Namea of the shareholder As at 81 March 2024 As at 3). March 2023
No. of shares % of holding No, of sharas % of holding

Holding Company

Clix Capital Services Private Limited 55 199,994 100.00% 54,999,994 100.00%
Tatal 55,195,994 100.00% 54,999,994 100.00%

As par records of the Company, including 1ts register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareheldars regarding
heneficial interest, the above shareholding represants both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares,

Shares held by promoters

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
: Nag, of shares % of holding No, of shares % of holding

Holding Company
Clix Capital Services Private Limited 55,199,994 100.00% 54,999,994 100.00%

Details of shareholdars holding more than 5% shares In the Company

Name of the sharehelder As at As at

No. of shates % of holding Nuo, of shares % of holding
Clix Capital Services Private Limited 55,198,999 100.00% 54,955,594 100.00%
Total 55,100,004 100.00% 54,999,994 100.00%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations recelved from sharehaiders regarding beneficizl interest, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares,

Cix Capital Services Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Plutus Financials Pvi Ltd, {Mauritius}

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of iNR 10 per share, Each shareholder of the Company is entitled to vote in proportion of the share
of paid-up capital of the Company held by the shareholder. Each shareholder is entitled to receive interim dividend when it is declared by the Board of Directors. The
final dividends proposed by the Board of Dlrectors are paid when approved by the shareholders at annual general meeting,

In the event ot liguidation, the Sharenoidars of the Company are entitled to recetve the remaining assets of the Company atter discharging all liabllities ot the
Company in proportion to thelr shareholdings,

Aggregate number of bonus shares issued during the peried of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

As at As ak As at As at As at
March 312024  March 31, 2023 March 31 2022 March 31 2021 March 31 2020
Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by ) - .- - - -
capitalization of securities premium
Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by - - - - -
capialisation of general reserve
Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by - - - - -
capitalisation of Credit balance in Statement of Profit and '

Loss
Total - - - - -

Particular

Aggregate number of bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

As at As at As at As at As at
March 312024  March 312023 March 312022 March 31 2021 March 31 2020
Equity shares bought back by capitalisation of Statement of - - - - -
Profit and Loss and transferred to capital redemption reserve
{INR 10 face value of each share )

Particuiar

Total - - - - -




(b)

{c)

Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Note 18: Other Equity

Share based payment reserve

Opening balance 1,492 701
Compensation options granted during the year 1,250 791
Reversal towards Cash Settlement during the year (501) -
Closing balance ' 2,241 1,492
Statutory reserve ufs 29¢C of The National! Housing Bank
Act, 1987
Opening balance 17,825 11,869
Addition during the year 4,517 5,956
Closing balance 22,342 17,825
Retained earnings
Opening balance 3,625 (20,197)
Profit for the year 22,676 29,559
-Transfer to statutory reserve, (4,517} {5,956)
- Re-measurement (losses)/gains on defined benefit .
plans, net of tax (89} 219
Closing balance 21,695 3,625
Total 46,278 22,944

hased payments provided to employees as a part of their remuneration.

Statutory reserve ufs 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987: Section 29C (i) of The National Housing
Bank Act, 1987 defines that every housing finance institution which is a company shall create a reserve fund
and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty percent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the
statement of profit and loss before any dividend is declared. Accordingly, during the year ended 31 March
2024, The Company has transferred an amount of INR 4,517 {31 March 2023: INR 5,956) to the Reserve in

terms of Section 29C of the National Housing Bank {“"NHB"} Act, 1987.

Retained earnings: These represent the surplus in the profit and loss account and is free for distribution of

dividend.

T

frsm

"Share based payment reserve: The holding Company provides share based payment schemes to the
employees of the Company.Share based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity settled share



Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Note 19 Interest Income

On financial assets measured at Amortised cost
Interest income on

- Loans 57,880 158,508

- Inter-corporate Loan 4,808 4,337

Total 102,688 162,845
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Note 20: Feas and commission income

Application and other fees - 57
Other charges 7,068 12,109
Total 7,068 12,166
Note 20.1: Revenue from contracts with customers
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Type of services or service

One Time application and other fees

Other Charges

Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Geographical markets

India

Outside india

Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over tima
Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Information about Company's performance obligations

- 57
7,068 12,109
7,068 12,166
7,068 12,166
7,068 12,166
7,068 12,166
7,068 12,166

The Performanace obligation in regards of arrangements where the above faes is charged per transaction executed

is recognised at point in time when transaction is executed.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 21: Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes

(A} Net gain/ {loss) on financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss
{}) On trading porifolic
- Investments 3,450 8,937
Total Net gain on financial instruments 3,450 8,037
(B)Fair Value changes:
-Realised 2,653 9,768
-Unrealised -MTM gain/{loss) 797 (832)
Total Net gain on fair value changes{A} to tally with (B) 3,450 8,837

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

21 March 2023

Note 22: Other income
Iinterest income
- on fixed deposits
- on income tax refund
Miscellaneous Income
Total

2,611
93
2,162

4,866




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Mote 23: Finance Costs
At amortised cost
Interast on borrowings {including debt securities)
- Term loans from banks - 50,347
- Mon convertible debentures 18,515 43,480
- Borrowing against Securitised Portfolic 28,497 15,376
- Inter-cerporate loans 5,940 21,033
Bank chargas 51 103
Total 53,003 130,339
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Note 24: Fees and commission expense

Feas and commission expense 1,582 4,843
1,582 4,843
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 25: Impairment on financial instruments
At amortised cost
ECL on loan assats (77,433} 62,815
ECL on loan assats adjusted against interest income on Stage 3 loans™* {1,478) (1,966)
ECL on Loan Commitment - (266)
Bad debt written off / recovered {1,790) 8,872
ECL on other financlal assets {775) 1,587
Write off of other financial assets 93,843 -
Total 12,367 71,044
* relating to interest on credit impaired assets, which is netted off from Interest income in accordance with Ind AS 108 on Financial
tnstruments.
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

Note 26: Employee Benefits Expenses

31 March 2024

Salaries and wages 8,591 10,073
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 31) 6560 855
Share Based Payments to employees 1,250 751
Staff welfare expenses 5 103
Total 10,506 11,822
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Note 27: Other expenses ’
Rent 387 357
Printing & staticnary 2 66
Rates and taxes 20 32
Repairs and maintenance - 21
Insurance 339 404
Travelling and conveyance 302 1,155
Postage, telegrams and telephone - .20
l.egal and professional fees * 15,661 14,408
Qutsourced servica costs 208 2,364
Advertisernent and sales promotion 52 104
Miscellaneous 3 8
Total 16,974 19,439

* Legal and professional charges includes auditors remuneration (excluding goods and service tax) comprises the following:

Partlculars Year ended Year ended

21 March 2024 31 March 2023
As auditors:
Audit fee

-Statutory audit

-Limited review
In other capacity:
Other services (certification faes)
Reimbursement of expenses
Total

335 235
125 375
40

7

657




{a

(b

Clix Housng Finance Limlted
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{All emount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)

MNote 28; Income Tax
Current tax

{i} The components of incame tax expense far the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are:

Profit or loss section Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge B 23,375
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year (128) B
Deferred tax:
Relating to ariglnation and reversal of temporary differences 6,765 (13,960}
Adjustments n respect of Deferred tax recognised for previous year {118} {2,357)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 6,519 7,058
Current tax - 23,375
Current tax for earlier years (128) -
Deferred tax 6,647 (16,317}
{ii} Other comprehensive income section Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current income tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (30} 73
Income tax expense reparted in the other comprehensive section (39} 73
Incame tax expense veparted in the statement of profit and loss 6,489 7,131

{iit) Recanciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2024 &

31 March 2023
Partlculars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit before tax 28,185 36,616
Indian statutory income fax rate 25.17% 25,17%
Tax at applicakle statutory Income tax rate (A} 7,348 9,216
Adjustment in respest of Current tax of pravious year (B} (128) -
Non-deductible expenses (C) 321 189
Impact due to non recognistion of DTA on timing items (D} (1,022) {2,358)
Incorme tax expense reported in the profit or loss section (A+B+C4D) 6,519 7,057
Other Comprehenslve Income {118} 282
Tax at statutory Income tax rate {E ) (30] 73
Impact due to non recognition of DTA on timing difference {F) - -
Tax impact reported on Other Comprehensive Income (E+F) (30 73

Deferred Tax

Deferved Tax

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changas recorded in the Income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2024;

Deferrad tax Deferred tax Net deferred  Income statement
assels liahility tax asset /
{liabilities)
As at As at As at Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2024 21 March 2024 31 March 2024
Other Intangible Assets - {1,896) (1,896) (72} -
ECL on Loan and advancas/ investment/ Loan commitment 4,984 - 4,984 {20,008} -
Provision for expense / 438 Disallowance 1,423 - 1,423 194 -
Unabsorbed loss 13,484 - 13,484 13,484 -
Others - (263) (263) (200) -
Unamertised cost (net of unamortised fees) - (8,105) (8,105) {14) -
Remeasurament of defined benefit liability - - - {30) a0
19,891 {10,264} 9,627 {5,647) 30




The following tahle shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax axpense for the year ended 31 March 2023:

Defarrad tax Deferred tax Netdeferred  Income staternent act
assets liability tax asset /
{Nabliities)
As at As at Asat Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Other Intangible Assets - {1,824) {1,824} (1,824) -
ECL on Loan and advances/ Investment/ Loan commitment 24,991 - 24,591 24,991 -
Provision for expense / 438 Disailowance 1,229 - 1,229 1,239 -
Unabsorbed loss - - - - -
Others - (62) (62} {62) -
Unamortised cost {net of unamortised fees) - (8,091} (8,091) {8,091) -
Remeasurament of defined banefit Habllity - - - 73 (73)
26,220 {9,977) 16,244 16,317 {73)

Note 29: Earning per share
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the vear.

Difuted EPS Is caleuleted by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the
weighted average number of equity shares that would be Issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential erdinary shares into ordinary shares,

Petiod ended Period ended
March 31, 2024 Mayrch 31, 2023

Foilowlng reflects the profit and share data used In £PS computatlons:

Basic

Welghted average number of equity shares for computation of Basic EFS {INR

in 000's) 55,133 55,000
Net profit for caleulation of basic EPS (INR In 000's) 22,676 29,558
Basic aarning per share 041 0.54
Diluted

Weighted average number of aquity shares for computation of Diluted EPS

{INR In 000's} 55,133 55,000
Net profit for calculation of Dilutad ERS (INR fn 0D0's) 22,676 29,559
Diluted earning per share 0.41 B 0.54
Nominal value of equity shares {In INR} 10.00 10.00

Reconciflation of weighted average number of equity shares for the year ended 33 March 2024 for basic and diluted
earnings per share;

Particulars Weighted average no. of shares

) Basic Diluted
Equity shares of foce value of INR 10 per share
Cpening 55,000 55,000
Adtlitions 133 133
Closing 55,133 55,132

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2023 for basic and diluted earnings per share:

Particulars Weighted average no. of shares
Basic Dituted

Equity shares of face value of INR 10 per share

Opening 55,000 55,000

Additions . R

Closing 55,000 55,000

Note 30: Segment Information

The Company's primary business segment is reflected based on the principal business carried aut, i.e, Housing Finance. Accordingly, ro separate disclosure for segment reporting is
required to be made in the financial statements of the Company. The Company cperates principally within india and does not have operations in economic envirenments with different
risks and raturns; hence, it is considered operating in single geographical segment,
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data uniess stated otherwise)
Note 32: Contingent liabilities, commitments
A} Contingent liabilities
There is contingent liability amounting Rs. 14,500 as at year ended 31 March 2024 {31 March 2023 : Rs. 14,500)

B) Cammitment

The Company has a commitment of Nil (31 March 2023 : Nil) towards undrawn loan sanctions.




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)
Note 23: Related Party Disclesures

As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the vefated parties are given below,

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:

Particulars

Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Clix Analytics Private Limited (liquidatad w.e.f. 03rd January 2024}

Clix Loans Private Limited (Liquidated w.e.f. 29th November 2022)
Tezzract Fintech Private Limted (w.e.f. 2nd November 2023}
Tezz Capital Fintech Private Limited {w.e.f. 2nd November, 2023)

Key Managerial personnel

Kaushtk Ramkrishnan

Vikram Rathi

Aparna Bihany (from 02 December 2022)
Amit Kumar Jain

Alica Yadav {till 13 January 2023)

¥inu R Kaira {from 17 August 2023)

Relationship

Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Feflow Subsidiary

Feilow Subsidtary

Non Executive Director
Non Executive Director
Whole-time Director

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Company Secretary
Company Secretary

b The nature and volume of transactions carriad out with the above refated parties In the ordinary course of businass are as follows :

1, Remunaration to Key Managerial persannel

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2029 31 March 2023
Short Term Employee Benefits 6,940 5,225
Share based Payments# 1,250 791
8,190 - 6,016

{c

2

The remuneration given to key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefit, as they are determined on actuarial bas’s far the

Company as a whale.
# Represent ESOP reserve created towards options granted to KMP's
No remuneration has been paid by the Campany to its directors during the year. {2023; Nil)

2. Qther Transactions

Particulars

Year ended 31 March 2024

Year ended 31 March 2023

Amount received

Amount paid

Ameunt received

Amaunt paid

Interast on Inter Corporate Loans
Clix Capital Servicas Private Limited

Praceeds from Transfer of Financial assets {assignment}
Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Amount raceived on behalf of the related party
Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Amount paid by the company on behalf of the Related Party
Clix Capital Service Private Limited

Amount paid by the company recelved on behalf of related party towards financial assets
[Direct Assignment)
Clix Capital Service Private Limited

Proteeds from Investment received in equity shares
Clix Capital Services Privated Limited

Expense towards share based paymant schemes of Holding Company
Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Inter Corporate loans taken
Clix Capital Service Private Limited

Inter Corporate loans given
Clix Capital Service Private Limited

4,808

62,067

400

2,000

200,000

80,000

5,940

3060

3,037

749

200,000

4,337

3,500

30,000

10,000

21,033

300

791,

100,000

1,130,000

Balance vutstanding at the vear end

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Amounts Payahle
Inter company payahles
Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Amounts Receivable
Inter Corporate loans
Clix Capital Services Private Limitad

3,212

3,226

3,212

3,226

90,000

90,000




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 34: Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and alf other equity reserves
attributable ta the equity halders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capltal management is safety and security of
share capital and maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure in light of changes in economic canditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The
company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by net worth.

Debt to net worth ratio
{iNR in thousands)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Debts 175,971 714,966
Net worth ' 598,278 572,944
.|Debt to Net woth (times) 0.29 1.25

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
tovenants attachéd to the Interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the
financlal covenants would permit the lender to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial
covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrewing in the current pariod,

No changes were mada in the objectlves, policies ar processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March
2023.




Clix Housing Finance Limited :
Notes to Financial Statements far the year ended 31 March 2024
{(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

35 Fair value measurement

35.1 Valuation principles
“Fair value is the price that would be received to self an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderiy transaction in the principal
{or most advantageous} market at the measuremaent date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price}, regardless of
whether that price is directly/ indirectly ohservable or estimated using a valuation technique.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation
technigues.

35.2 Valuation governance
The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to
ensure appropriate safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new praduct initiatives (including their valuation
methodologies) are subject to approvals by Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) which shall be reported to the Board of Director. The
responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with business units . Once submitted, fair value estimates are also reviewed and
challenged by the Risk and Finance functions.

35.3 Assets and liabllities by fair value hierarchy
The company's investrment in Mutual Fund is the only financial asset measured at fair vatue through Profit & Loss. The fair value of
units held in mutual funds are measured based on thelr published net asset value {NAV) taking into account redemption and/or any
other restrictions. Such instruments are classified under Level 1. Fair valué of such investments held at 31 March 24 is INR 11,672
(31 March 2023: INR 10,875 ).

35.4 Valuation techniques

Mutual funds
Units held in funds are measured based on their published net asset value {NAV), taking into account redemption and/or other
restrictions. ’

35.5 Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Loans - Most of the loans are repriced frequently, with interest rate of loans reflecting current market pricing. Hence carrying value
of loans is deemed to be equivalent of fair value.

Borrowings and debt securities -

- Fair value of fixed rate borrowings is detemined by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using current market
interest rate charged for simiiar new barrowing and carrying value of such borrowing approximates fair value at financial statement
level.

Other Financial Assets and Liabilities - The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade
payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments,
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in {NR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Risk Management

Introduction and risk profile

Company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, it is managed through an integrated risk management
framework, including ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk
management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk
exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and interest rate risk. It Is
alse subject to various operating and business risks.

Risk management struture and policies
The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management strategies and

principles. The Risk Managemant Committee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and implementing
principles, frameworks, policies and limits. The Risk Management Committee is responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring
risk levels and reports to the Board, .

The Risk Management Unit is responstble for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure an independent control
process is maintained. The unit works closely with and regorts to the Risk Management Committee, to ensure that procedures are
compliant with the overall framework. .

The Unit is also responsible for monitoring compliance with risk principles, policies and I'mits across the Company.'Each business group
has its own unit which is responsible for the control of risks, including monitoring the actual risk of exposures against authorised limits and
the assessment of risks of new products and structured transactions. The Company’s Treasury is responsible for managing its assets and
liabilities and the overall financial structure. It is also primarily responsibie far the funding and liquidity risks of the Company.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company wiil incur & loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual
obligations. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is wiling to accept for individual
counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by menlitoring exposures in relation to such limits. Credit risk is
monhitored by the credit risk department of the Company’s independent Risk mangament Unit, It is their responsibility to review and
manage credit risk, The Company assesses the credit quality of all financia! Instruments that are subject to credit risk.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amaount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, The maximum exposure to cradit risk was INR 747,017
and INR 1,374,344 as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of loan balances and other
financial assets.




36.2.2

Clix Houstng Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Analysis of risk concentration

- The Company’s concentrations of risk are managed based on Loan to value (LTY) segregation as well as the purpose of loan i.e. where it is a loan fer house

purchase or loan agaln property for businass purposes. The following tables stratify credit exposures from loans to customers by ranges of loan-to-value (LTV)
ratio and on product basis. LTV Is calculated as the ratio of gross amount of the Joan - or the amount committed for loan commitments - to the value of the
collateral, The value of the collateral for loans is based on collateral value at srigination.

31 March 2024
Loans to customers:

LTV wise bifurcation;

LTV huckat Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Amount
0%-40% 77,526 15,199 4,333 97,064
More than 40%- upto 60% 105,962 12,279 12,544 130,785
More than 60%- upto 80% 254,275 53,703 47,357 355,335
More than 80% 43,038 10,818 2,191 56,947
Total 481,700 91,999 66,432 640,131
*Excluding Intercorporate Loan INR 90,000

Customer brofile

Customer proflle Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Amount
Housing ioan 355,426 72,252 34,422 462,099
Loan agatnst property 126,275 19,747 32,010 178,032
Total 481,700 91,999 66,432 640,131
Lean Commitments:

LTV wise bifurcation:

LTV hucket Stage I Stage 2 Stage 3 Amount
0%-40% - - - -
More than 40%- upto 60% - - - -
More than 60%- upto 80% - - - -
More than 80% - - - -
Total - - - -
Customer profile:

Lustomer profile Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Armount
Housing ioan : - - - -
Loan against property - - - -
Total - B - -
31 March 2023

Loans to customers:

LTV wise bifurcation:

LTV bucket, Stage 1% Stage 2 Stape 3 Amount
0%-10% 146,553 16,158 387 163,098
More than 40%- upto 60% 227,227 21,633 7,292 256,152
More than 60%- upto 80% 452,273 61,680 56,063 570,016
More than 80% 75,488 352 3,449 79,290
Total 901,542 99,823 67,191 1,068,556
Customer proflle

Customer profile Stage 1* Stage 2 Stage 3 Amount
Housing lpan 520,974 72,635 34,796 628,405
Loan against property 380,568 27,188 32,395 440,151
Total 901,542 99,823 67,191 1,068,556
*Excluding Intercorperate Loan INR 90,000

Loan Cormmitments:

LTV wise bifurcation:

LFV buchet Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Amount
0%-40% - - - -
More than 40%- upto 60% - - - -
More than 60%- upto 80% - - - -
More than 80% - - - -
Total - - - -
Customer profile;

Custamer profile Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Amount
Housing loan - - - -
Loan against property B . R B
Total - . .
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Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk refers to the risk that the Company can not meet its financial obligations. The objective of Liquidity risk management is to
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are avaflable for use as per requirement. The unavailabllity of adecuate amount of
funds to repay the financial ifabilities and further growth of business may lead to an Asset Liability Management (ALM) mismatch
caused by a difference in the maturity profile of Company assets and liabilities. It may be related to funding — impossibility to obtaln
new funding — and to markets — inability to sell or convert liquid assets into cash without significant losses. Thereforé, the Company
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and undrawn credit facilities, by continuously monitoring forecasted and
actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities,

Liquidity risk is managed by ALCO through its periodic reviews relating to the liquidity position and stress tests under ‘what if’
scenarios and comparing probable gaps with the liquidity buffers maintained.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the un-discounted cash flows of the cormnpany's financial liabllities

Maturity profile of Financial ligbilities as on

Maturity profile of Financial liabilities as on March

March 31, 2024 31, 2023
Particulars Borrowings Payables Other Borrowings Payables Other Financial
{(including debt Financial | {including debt liahtlities
securities) liabilities securities)

Less than 1 year 12,995 23,427 22,127 435,996 15,246 89,124
Over 1 yearto 3 years 29,393 - - 25,281 - -
Over 3 year to 5 years 134,292 - - 280,285 - -
Total 176,680 23,427 22,127 741,571 15,246 89,124
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Market Risk

Marlet risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market factors.
Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market
changes. The Company’s exposura to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The company Is subject to interest rate risk, primarily since it lends to customars at rates and for maturity periods that may differ from
funding sources. interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond control, including the monetary policies of of the Reserve Bank
of India, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and international economic and political conditions, inflation and other
factors. In order to manage interest rate risk, the company seek to optimize borrowing profile between short-term and long-term loans.
The company adopts funding strategies to ensure diversified resource-raising options to minimize cost and maximize stability of funds,
Assets and liabilities are categorized into various time buckets based on their maturities and Asset Liability Management Committee
supervise an interest rate sensitivity report periodically for assessment of interest rate risks.

The company mitigates s interest rate risk by keeping a balanced portfolio of fixed and variahle rate loans and borrowings.

Interest Rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest ratas (alt other variables being constart) of the

Company’s statement of profit and loss:

Year ended 31 March 2024

Year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars Basis Points Effect on Profit before Basis Points Effect on Profit
tax hefore tax
Loans
fncrease in basis points 50 2,753 50 4,275
Decrease In basis points -50 {2,753) -50 (4,275)

Year ended 31 March 2024

Year ended 31 March 2023

Effect on Profit before

Effect on Profit

Particulars Basis Points Basis Points
{ax hefore tax
Borrowings*®
Increase in basis points 50 - 50 -
Decrease in basis points -50 - -50 -

* The Company does not have any floating rate borrawings, accerdingly interest rate sensitivity discl

osure for borrowings is NIL.

Year ended 31 March 2024

Year ended 31 March 2023

. . . Effect on Profit before . . tffect on Profit
Particulars Basis Points Basis Points
tax before tax
Investment in units of Mutual Funds
Increase in basis points 50 58 50 54
Decrease in basis points -50 (58) -50 (54)




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statermnents for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otheriwise)

Note 37 : Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
The table below shows contractual maturity profile of carrying value of assets and liabilities:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12
Total Total
months months months months
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9,179 - 9,179 8,667 - 8,667
Bank balance other than included in above 17,280 - 17,280 15,372 - 15,372
lLoans 27,026 588,717 615,743 113,Q40 943,695 1,056,735
Investments 11,672 5,315 16,987 16,190 - 16,190
QOther financial assets 11,084 94,211 105,295 22,300 191,122 213,422
Non-financial Assets -
Current tax asset - 10,106 10,106 - 5,249 5,249
Deffered Tax Assets 9,627 9,627 16,244 16,244
Other intangible assets - 10,185 10,185 - 11,664 11,664
Other Non financial assets 14,132 - 14,132 14,577 418 14,995
Asset held for sale 13,185 - 13,185 35,891 - 35,891
Total Assets 103,558 718,161 821,719 226,037 1,168,392 1,394,429
LFABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
I} Trade Payables
tst i i
a)'TotaI outstanding due's of micro 1341 i 1,341 csn i 555
enterprises and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro enterprises 22,086 - 22,086 14,691 - 14,691
and smalf enterprises
I} Other Payables -
a) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
b) total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro enterprises - - - - - -
and small enterprises
Debt Securities - - - 406,253 406,253
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 12,946 163,025 175,971 3,826 304,787 308,713
Other financial liabilities(to be specified) 22,127 - 22,127 89,124 - 89,124
Non-Financial Liabilities -
Provisions 272 847 1,119 189 749 038
Other Non-financial Liahilities 797 - 797 1,211 - 1,211
Total liabilities 59,569 163,872 223,441 515,949 305,536 821,485
Net 43,988 554,289 508,278 {289,912) 862,856 572,944
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Cllx Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amount n INR thousands, except for share data unlass stated otherwise)

Note 39, Disclosure pursuant ta RBI Notlfication - RBI/2019-20/170 DOR {NBFC},CC.PD.No.108/22.10,106/2019-2C Dated 13 March 2020 - A comparison between provisions required
undler Income recagnition, asset classification and provisioning (IRACP) and impairment allowances as per Ind AS 109 ‘Financial instruments’ for the year ended 31 March 2024 :

Asset Giross Carrying Amount Losa Allswances Net Carryin Previsions required as Diffarence hetween Ind
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms classification as as erlnil P [Provisions) as requlred Amour:t & or IRACP?\qr;s AS 109 provisions and
per nd AS 109 p under Ind AS 109 p IRACP norms
1) §21 3) (4) (5)=(3) - (4} (8) 7)=14) - (6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 481,700 2,576 479,124 1,304 1,272
Stage 2 91,999 3,477 88,522 1,747 1730
Subtotal 573,699 6,053 567,646 3,051 3,002
Non-Perfarming Assets (NPA)

Substandard Stage 3 38,354 9,912 28,442 5,753 4,159
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 28,078 8,423 19,655 7,020 1,403

1to 3 yesrs Stage 3 - - - - -

More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for doubiful Stage 3 28,078 8,423 19,655 7,020 1,403

Loss Stage 3 . - - - -
Subtotal for NPA 66,432 18,335 48,097 12,773 5,562
Other ltems such as EIS, loan commitments, Stage 1 98,291 493 97,798 ; 493

which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not
covered under current Income Recognition, Stage 2 4,504 173 4,431 . 173
Asset  Classification and  Provisigning

(IRACP} norms Stage 3 2,453 925 1,528 - 925
Subtotal 105,348 1,591 103,757 - 1,551
Stage L 579,991 3,069 576,922 1,304 1,765
Total Stage 2 96,603 3,650 92,953 1,747 1903
Stage 3 68,885 19,260 49,625 12,773 5,487
Total 745,479 25,979 719,500 15,824 10,155




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 40: Public Disclosure on Liquidity Risk as per Liquldity Risk Management Framework as per Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing
Finance Company {Reserve Bank]) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India {Mon-Banking Financial Company — $cale Based Regulation)
Directions, 2023,

{

(ii)

{iii)

()

{v)

{vi)

Funding Concentratlon based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings):

4 " T
Number of Slgnifican * Amount* (INR Cr} % of Total Deposits % of Total
Counterpartias* Liabilities
2 17.60 NA 79%

*Significant counterparty is as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.Ne¢.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4 Nov 2019 on Liguidity Risk
Management Framework for Non Banking Financial Companies and Core investment Companies. Funding congentration based on significant counterparty has
been computed using latest beneficiary position instead of original subscribers.

Top 20 large deposits {amount and % of total deposits):

Not Applicable.

Total of top 10 borrowings {amount and % of total borrowings):

Amount (INR Cr) % of Total Borrowings

17.60 100%

Funding concentration based on significant counterparty has been computed using latest beneficiary position instead of original subscribers.

Funding Concentration based on significant instrument* / product;

% of Total
Sr. No. Name of the instrument/product Amount {INR Cr) /°,° . ,o, i
Liabilities

2 Other Securitization Liabilities 17.60 79%

*Significant instrument/product is as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD} CC.Ne.202/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4 November 2019 an Liquidity
Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Finaneial Companies and Core Investment Companies.

Stock Ratios:

5r. No. Particulars % of Total Public Funds % of Total Liabilities % of Total Assets
1 Commaercial papers - - -
5 Non-convertible debentures (eriginal - ) ) )
maturity of less than one year)
3 Other shart-term liabilities# 34% 27% 7%

# Other Short Term tiabilities includas advance received from customers

Total Liabilities are excluding equity share capital and other equity
Public funds are considered as total of barrowings

Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management:

The Board.of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishing the risk management framework for the Company. The Board, in turn has established an ALM
Committee (ALCO) for evaluating, monitoring, and reviewing liquidity and interest rate risk arising in the Company on both sides of the Balance sheet. The Board
based on recommendations from the ALCD has prescribed policies and the risk limits for the management of liguidity risk.

ALCO committee s responsible for managing the risks arising out of Asset Liability mismatches consistant with the regulatory requirements and internal risk
tolerances established by the Beard. Amongst other responsibilities, ALCO has been empowered io decide the funding mix for the Campany in light of the future
business strategy and prevailing market conditions. ALCO committee is conducted at least once in a quarter and the ALCC minutes are reviewed by the Board
from time to time,




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial $tatements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All ameunt Ih INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)
Nate 41, Detalls of resolution plan Implemanted under the Resolution framework for COVID-19 related stress as per RBI circular dated 06 August 2020 (Resolution Framework - 1.0)
and 05 May 2021 (Resolution Framework 2.0) as at 31 March 2024 are glven below:
{INR In thousands}
14) {B) ) o) {E)
Exposure to accounts classifled|0f {A), aggregate debt|Of (A) amount written off{Of {A) amount pald bylExposure to  accounts
as Standard consequent to|that slipped into NPA|durlng the year ended 31|the borrowers during|classified as  Standard

Type of borrower Implamantation of reselution|during the year ended 31|March 2024 the year ended 31|consequent to
plan - Positlon as at 30}March 2024 March 2024 implementation of|
September 2023 (A} resolutlon plan — Position
as at 31 Maich 2024
Personal Loans 42,833 8,322 - 4,048 24,110 #
Cerporate peraons* - - - ~ -
Of which, MSMEs - - - - -
Othars - - - - -
Total 42,833 8,322 - 4,048 -

* As deflned In Section 3{7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
# IMR 6,353 thousands upgraded during the half year ended 31 March 2024

Note 42, Changa In liablllties arising from financing activitles

Particulars 1 April 2023 Cash flows Changes In fair values Exchange difference Others* 31 March 2024

Debt securltles 406,252 {406,253} - - . -
Borrowlngs other than debt securities 308,713 {132,151} - - {591) 175,971
Total llabilities from financing activitles 714,966, {538,404) - - {592) _ 175971
Particulars 1 April 2022 Cash flows Changes In fair values Exchange difference Others*® 31 March 2023

Debt sacurities 403,747 - - - 2,506 406,253
Borrowings other than debt securities 1,661,857 (1,358,110) - - 4,966 308,713
Total liahlfitles from financing activities . 2,065,604 {1,358,110) - - 7,472 714,966

¥ Others column Includes amartisation of transactlon cost and Interest accrued but hot due.

Note 43, Corporate soclal rasponsibility

Pursuant to Sectlon 135 of the Companias Act, 2013 the Compahy Is not requived to lncur any expenditure in respect of corperate social respensibility durlng the year ended 31 March 2024, (31 March 2023;
i)

Note 44. Expenditure in foreign currency
The company has not Incurred any expenditure in foreign currency during current vear and previous year,

Note 45, Un-hedged forelgn currency exposure
The Company’s exposure in respect of foreign currency dencmirated assets & liabllities [trade recslvable & trade payables) as at 31 March 2024 is Njl (31 March 2023: Nil)

Nete 46 1 At the year end, the Company did not have any long-tarm contracts Including derivatives contracts for which there were any material foresesable lasses.

Note 47 : Title deeds of immovable propertles not held in name of the Company
There are no title deeds of immovable properties which are not hald In the name of the company except for below:

Relevant line itam in the Balance sheet |Description of item of Net Carrying Value* | Title Deeds held in name | Whether title deed Property held since which |Reason for not belag
property of holder is promoter, data held in the name of the
director or ralative of company

promoter/diractor or
employee of

promaterfdiractor .
Asset held for sale Collateral propertles agalnst 13,185 | Respective borrowers Na Sept 22 - March 24 Passession of assats
loans given taken under under

Securitisationand
Recenstruction of
Financlal Assets and
Enforcement of
Securities Interest Act,
2002 {“SARFAES")

*Gross carrying value INR 19,725,

Nate 48 : Details of crypto currancy or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the flnancial years endad 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Note 49 : Details of banami property held
No procesdings have been Inltiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohihition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made theraunder in the
financial years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Note 50: Witful defaultar
The Company has not been daclared as a wiiful defaulter by any bank or fihanclal Institution or other lender in the financlal years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Note 51 | Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
All charges or satlsfactlon are reglsterad with ROC within the statutory period for the financial years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. N
beyond the statutary period. Ty,




Clix Houslng Finance Limited
Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
({All amount In INR thausands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 52 : Utlilsatlen of borrowed funds and share pramium
The Compary, as part of ts normal buslness, grants loans and advances, makes investment, providas guarantess to and accapt from Its customars, othar entitias and persons. These transactlens are part of

Company's normal housing finance business, which is conducted ensuring adherence to all regutatory reguirements, Gthar than tha transactions deseribed above, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
Invastad [aither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company te or in any other parsens or antitiss, including foralgn entltles {"Intermedlaries) with the
undarstanding, whether recorded tn writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall lend or Invest Iin party ‘\dent\fi;d by or on behalf of the Company {Ultimate beneficiarles). The Company has also not
recelved any fund fram any parties {Funding party) wlith the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or Indirectly lend or Invast in other persons or entitles Identified by or on behalf of the
funding party (“Ultimate heneficlarles”) or provide any guarahtae, sacurlty or the llke on behalf of the ultimate beneficlaries.

Nete 53 ¢ Compliance with number of layers of companias

Tha Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies {Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the financlal years anded 31
March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Note 54 ; Relationship with struck off companias

The Cempany has nat baen undertaken any transactions with any company whose name ls struck off under section 248 of Companias Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companles Act, 1858 |n the flnancial years
ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Note 55 : There have been no events after the reperting date that require disclosure In these financial statements {31 March 2023 Nil).

Note 56 ; The figures of Previous Year (PY) have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever nacessary to conflrm to those of the Current Year (CY). The figures have been rounded off to nearest rupee (in
thousands) and any discrepancy In total and sum of ameunts in notes is due to rounding off.

For DMKH & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Clix Housing Finance Limited

ICAI Firm Registratlon No, 116886W s )
Rakesh Kaul K Ramatrishnan —

Mai:(ﬁfalnl

Partner Directer Directar

Membership No./ 158020 DIN: 03386665 DIN: 08303198

Place! Mumbal Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbal

Date: 27 May 2024 Cate: 27 May 2024 Date: 27 May 2024
[+]

AL~ e
mit Kurhar Jain Vlnunﬁy

Chief Financial Officer Compuany Secretary
Membership No: A17923

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugrém
Date: 27 May 2024 Date: 27 May 2024
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Clix Housing Finance Limited

Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwisa)
Disclosures required by National Housing Bank

Minimum disclosures

The following additionzl disclosures have heen given as per the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing

Firance Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 read with Master Direction — Resery

‘Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023,

Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The accounting policies regarding key areas of operations are disclosed as Note 3

Statement for the year ended 31 March 2024.

e Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial

of Accounting poalicy to the Standalone Financial

Disclosure:
Capital
Pérticulars As at As at
31-03-2024 31-03-2023
i) CRAR (%) 106.25% 34.91%
ii) CRAR - Tier | capltal (%) 105.67% 33.66%
ili}  [CRAR - Tier [l capital (%) 0.58% 1.25%
iv)  [Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-i| capital - -
V) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -
Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987
Particulars As at As at
31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Balance at the beginning of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 17,825 11,8569
b} Amount of special reserve u/s 35(1){viil)of Income Tax Act, 1361 - “
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
c) Total - -
Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawa! du ring the year
Add:
a) Amount transferred /s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 4517 5956
b) Amount of special reserve ufs 36(1){vill) of Income Tax Act, 1961 " -
taken into account’ for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Less:
a) Amount apprapriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of - -
the NHB Act, 1987
b] Amount withdrawn from the Special Resarve u/s 36(1){viii) - -
of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account
which has been taken into account for the purpose of provision
u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Balance at the end of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 22,342 17,825
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36{1)(viii)of Income Tax Act, 1961 - -
taken into account for the purpeses of Statutory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
c) Total 22,342 i7,825
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Clix Housing Finance Limited

Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data uniess stated otherwise)

Investment
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(1) Value of Investments
{i}  Gross Value of Investments
(a) InIndia 16,987 16,190
(b} OQutside India, - -
(i) Provisions for Depreciation
(a) Inlndia - -
(b} Outside India, - -
(i} Net Value of Investments
(a) IniIndia 16,987 16,190
(b) Outside india. - -
(2} Movement of  provisions held  towards

{i} Opening balahce
(i} Add: Provisions made during the year
(i} Less : Write-off / write-back of excess

{iv) Closing balance

Derivatives

There are no forward rate agreement/ Interest rate swap entered into by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 and

31 March 2023,

There are no exchange traded interest rate derivatives entered into by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31

March 2023,

The Company does not have any risk management policy pertaining to derivatives, associated risks and business purpose served as
the Company does not take any of the derivatives mentioned in a and b above during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March

2023,

There were no non-performing financial assets purchased or sold during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Details of transfer through assignment in respect of loans not in default during the year entded 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

Particulars For the year ended 31 | For the year endad
March 2024 31 March 2023

Entity NBFC HFC

Count of loan accounts assigned 38 276

Amount of loan accounts assigned 68,963 623,457

Retention of beneficial economic interest (VIRR) 10% 5%-10%*

Weighted average maturity (Residual Maturity) (months) 162 197

Weighted average holding period (months) 24 15

Coverage of tangible security coverage 100% 100%

Rating wise distribution of rated loans Unrated Unrated

*273 loan count have 10% MRR and 3 loan count have 5% MRR

There are no purchase of 'not in default category' financial assets during the year ended 21 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
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c8.

Clix Housing Finance Limited
Annexure 1 to Netes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

(i} Exposures
Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Category

Asat
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

1} Direct exposure
(a) Residential Mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on resldential
property that Is or will be occupied by the berrower or that is rented:

{b) Commercial Real Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office huildings,
retail  space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure
would also include
nen-fund based (NFB) limits;

{c) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures

(a) Residential
[b) Commercial Rezl Estate

2} Indirect exposure
Fund hased and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and
Housing Finance Companias (HFCs)

640,011

120

1,158,437

118

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

640,131

1,158,556

{1i) Exposure to Capital Market

Category

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

a) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures
and units of equity- oriented mutual funds the corpus of which Is not exclusively
Invested in corporate debt;

b} advances against shares/honds/debentures or other securities or on clean basls
to individuals for investment in shares (including |POs/ESOPs), convertible bonds,
convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

¢) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary
security;

d) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral
security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares/convertible
bonds/convertible  debenturesfunits of equity oriented mutual funds does not
fully cover the agvances;

e) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on
behaif of stockbrokers and market makers;

f}  loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds/ debentures or
other securities or on clean basis for meating promoter’s contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising resources;

g} bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/issues;

h)  Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of
shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual
funds:

i} Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading;
i} All exposures to Alternative investment Funds:
(1) Category !

(1i)} Category it

(ifi) Category I1];

Total Exposure to Capital Market Sector

AT




Clix Houslng Finance Limited

Anneare 1 to Notes to flnancial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amount In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otharwise)

i3} Datails of finanting of parent company protucts

There has been na flnancing mace by the Company of parent company's products durlng the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

{iv} Detalls of 5ingle Barrower Limit {SEL) / Group Borrower Limit {GBL}

During the year ended 31 Maich 2024 and 31 March 2023 the Company’s credit exposures to stngle borrowars and group botrowers were within the prudential exposure
limits,

{v} Unsecurad Advances
Total loans as an 31 March 2024, Includas zere Unsecured loans.{31 March 2023: INR 30,500}

{vi] Exposure to group companles engaged in real estate buslness

5.0, Dascription Amount % of owned fund
0 Exposure to any slngle entity In a group engaged in real
estate buslnass - 0.00%
{ih) Exposure to all entltias In 2 group engaged In real estate
business - 0.00%

[vii) Reglstratlon obtained from other finangial sector regulators
The Company has obtalned reglstration frem Financlal Intalligance Linits, Indfa vide Registration No. FOSG00630,
€9.  DPisciosure of Penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators
Na penalty has been imposed by the NHB or any other regulater during the year,
C10. Related party transactions
Please refer Note 33 for detailed note on Relatad party tranactions,
Cil. Group Structure
Please refer Note 33 for group structure,
C12.  Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

As of 31 March 2024, there are ratings being asslgned which are glven In the below tahle.

Rating assigned
Asat 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Instrument Rating agency

Acuits ratings & .

+
Bank loans research / Aduite A Aclite AA- / BWR AA-
Bilclawark ratings
Aculte ratings & .

+
Long term debt pregramme research / Aculze A Aculte AA-/ BWR A+
Brickworlc rat|ngs

C13. ’ Remuneration of directors
No remuneration has been paid to directors during the vear (31 March 2023: Nif).
C14. Management
Refer to tha Management Discussion and Analysls report for the relevant disclosures,
€15, Net Profit or Lass for the peried, prior period ltems and changes inaccounting palicias
During the year there were no prior perlod items which had an impact on current year's profit and loss

€16, Revenue Recognltion

There have been no instances where revenue recognition has baen postponed pending the resalutlon of significant uncertalntes, Please refer Noté 3.3 for revenue
recognltion policy,

C17. Consclidated FInancial Statements {CFS)

The Company does not have any investment In subsidiary/associate/ Jolnt venture and hence requirement of consolldated financial statermesnts 1s not applicable.

C18. Provisions and Contingencies

n Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head For the year ended Eor the year ended .
Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account 31 March 2624 31 March 2023
Previslon for depreciation on Investment - R
Provision mads towards Income Tax {122) 23,375
Provislon towards NPA {5,891} 4,697
Pravislon for standard assets* {71,442) 58,218
|Other provislons and contingendles** (2.254) . {645}

* Includes ECL on CRE of INR 1 {31 March 20231 INR 9)
** Other provisions and contingencles includes ECL on loan commitment amounting to Nil {31 March 2023: INR {266}, ECL on other financlals assats INR{ 775) (31 March
2023: INR 1587) and ECL. adjusted against Interest Income on stage 3 assets amounting to INR {1478) (31 March 2023; {1966)).




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Alfamount in [NR thousands, except for share data unless statad otherwise)

(ii)

Housing Non-Housing

Break up of Loan & Advances and For the year For the year For the year For the year
Provisions thereon ended ended ended ended

31-03-24 31-03-23 31-03-24 31-03-23
Standard assets
{a) Total Outstanding Amount 427,678 593,609 146,022 497,757
{b) Pravision made 4,374 42,925 1,678 34,566
Sub-Standard assets
(a) Tota! Outstanding Amount 27,636 29,554 13,669 21,815
{b) Provision made 6,880 10,700 3,917 7,898
Doubtful assets - Category |
(a) Total Outstanding Amount 6,785 5,242 18,341 10,579
(b) Provision made 2,038 1,398 5,503 3,830
Doubtful assets - Category Il
(a) Total Outstanding Amount - - - -
(b} Provision made - - - -
Doubtful assets - Category [l
(a} Total Outstanding Amount - - - -
(b} Provision made - - . -
Loss assets
{a) Total Outstanding Amount - - - -
{b) Provision made - - - -
Total
(a) Total Outstanding Amount 462,099 628,405 178,032 530,151
{(b) Provision made 13,290 55,527 11,098 46,294

€19. Draw Down from Reserves

There has been no draw down from reserves during the financial year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

C20. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures'and NPAs

a. Concentration of Advances *

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Totai Advances to twenty largest horrowers 168,278 294,773
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total ) .
Advances of the HFC 26% 25%
b. Concentration of Exposures *
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Total Exposure to fwenty largest borrowers/ customers 168,278 294,773
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to 5% 250
Total Exposure of the HFC on borrowers / customers ° N
*Gross of impairment loss allowance
¢. Concentration of NPAs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
33,594 32,994

Total exposure to top four NPA accounts




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Annexure 1 te Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Allamount In INR thausands, excapt for share data unless stated otherwise)

C21. Sector-wise NPAs

$r. No. |sector Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in
that sector
A, Housing Loans
1 Individuals 7.45%
2 Builders/Project loans N
3 Corporates -
4 |Cthers (specify) -
B. Non Housing Loans
1 Individuals 17.88%
2 Builders/Project loans -
3 |Corporates -
4 |Others (Inter-corporate loan) -

C22. Movement of NPAs

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{ij |Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 7.74% 3.78%
(i) |Movement of NPAs (Gross)
{a) Cpening balance 67,191 65,426
{h) Additions during the year 39,953 55,565
{c} Reductions during the year (40,712) (53,800)
{d) Closing halance 66,432 67,191
(i} iMovement of Net NPAg
{a) DOpening balance 42,864 45,797
(b Additions during the year 31,272 35,783
(c) Raductions during the year {26,039) (38,716)
(d) Closing balance 48,097 42,864
{iii) | Movement of Provision for NPAs {excluding provision on standard assets}
{a) Opening balance 24,326 19,628
(b) Provisions made during the year 8,681 19,783
{c) Write-off / write-back of excess provisions (14,672) (15,085)
(d) Closing balance 18,335 24,326
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

Disclosure of Complaints

For the year ended | For the year ended
. ho. . ho. Particul
Sr. o. | Sub Sr. no artieutars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
1 Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 0 0
2 Number of complaints received during the year 18 61
3 . Number of complaints disposed off during the yaar ) 17 al
3.1 Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC - -
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 1 -
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from office of Ombudsman
5 Number of maintainable compiaints recelved by the NBFC from the - -
5.1 Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by office - -
of Ombudsman
5.2 Of 5, number of complaints reselved through - -
5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by - -
6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipufated time (other - -
than those appealed)
Grounds of Number of Number of % of increase in the Number of Of 5, number of .
Complaints complaints complaints number of complaints |Complaints Pending complaints
pending at the | received during | received of the previous | at the end of the |pending beyond 30
beginning of the year year year days
the year
1 2 3 4
F.Y. 2023-24
Foreclosure . 26%
Related ) ' ) )
Banking Related - 2 -92% - -
PMAY Status - 0 -100% - -
Extended 5 100% 1
Collection Chase i ’ )
CIBIL Related - -1 -50% - -
MISC - 6 500% - -
F.Y.2022-23
Foreclosure 29 719
Related ° )
Banking Related - 26 271% - -
PMAY Related “ 2 -78% - -
Extended " 67%
Collection Chase ¢
Loan cancellation
- 2 100% - -
related
MISC - 1 -75% - -
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Clix Housing Finance Limited

Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise}
Overseas Assets (for those with loint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)

There ware no overseas assets as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored
There were no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the company during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Loans against security of single product - gold jewellery:

The company has not granted any {oans against gold jewellery as collateral.
There were no fraud reported during the year (31 March 2023: Nil),

Advances against intangible securities

The Company has not given any loans against intangible securities.

Principal Business Criteria for HFCs

"Housing finance company” shall mean a company incerporated under the Companies Act, 2013 that fulfils the following conditions:
a) It is an NBFC whose financial assets, in the business of providing finance for housing, constitute at feast 60% of its total assets (netted off by
intangible assats),

b} Out of the total assets (netted off by intangible assets), not less than 50% should be by way of housing financing for individuals.

Principal business criteria for the Company is as below.

Particulars As at 31 March 2024

Total Assets 821,717
Less; Intangible assetsh {125,291)
Net total Assets 696,426
Housing Finance ) 462,099
Individua! Housing Finance 462,099
Percentage of housing finance to total assets (netted off intangible assets) 66.35%
Percentage of individual housing finance to total assets (netted off intangible assets) 66.35%

# Intanglble assets Include prepaid expenses, EIS receivable, Deferred tax assets and Other Intangible Assets.




Clix Housing Finange Limited
Annaxure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwisa)

€30. Details of securltisation transaction of the Company as an orlginator in respect of outstanding amount of securitised assets is given helow:

{in Crores)
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023
1 |Mo of SPVs sponsored by the HFC for securitisation transactions 2 2
2 [Total amount of securitised assets as per hooks of the SPVs sponsored 20.74 34.19
3 |Total amount of exposures retained by the HFC towards the MRR as on the date of balance
sheet**
{1) Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements - -
{il) On-balance sheet exposures tawards Credit Enhancements - -
a) Flxed Deposits and Mutual Funds 2.63 2.55
b} Pass through Certificates 0.53 0.53
4 |Amount of exposures to securltisatlon transactions other than MRR

(1) Off-balance sheet exposuras towards Credit
Enhancements

a) Exposure to own sacyritisations™

b} Exposura to third party securitisations

*Corporate guarantee given by Clix Capital Services Private Limitad INR 1.45 Cr as on 31 March 2024 { 31 March 2023; 1.45 {r)

** Minimum Retention Ratio

C31. Sectoral Expasure

{in ¢rores)

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Total Exposure Gross NPAs|  Percentage of Gross Total Exposure Gross NPAs | Percentage of
Sectors {includes on balance NPAs to total exposure | (includes on balance Gross NPAs to tatal
sheet and off - in that sector sheet and off -balance exposure in that
balance sheat sheet exposure} sector
Avnagural
1 |Agriculture and allied activities - - - - - -
2_|Industry - - - - . -
3 iServices - - - - - -
4 |Persgnal Loans
{1} Housing Loans 46,20 3.44 7.45% 62.82 348 5.54%
{ii) Non Housing Loans 17.80 3.20 17.98% 44,02 3.24 7.36%
ili} Others Q.01 - 0.00% 0.01 - 0.00%
Total of Personal Loans 64.01 5.04 10.38% 106.86 8,72 6.29%
5 |Financial Services (Inter-corporate loan) - - 0.00% 9.00 - 0.80%
€32, Intra-group exposuras®
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
1 _[Total amount of Intra-group exposuras - 90,000
2 _|Total amount of top 20 Intra-group exposures - 90,000
3 |Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the HFC on .00% 1.77%
borrowers.

*Ineludes Inter-corporate loan glven by the Company. It does not Include Intercorporate loan taken by the Compnay, other Intercompany payahlas/raceivabies

€33. Breach of Covenant

There is no breach of the terms of covenants In respect of debt securities issues and Borrowings {other than Debt Securities} during the year ended 31 March 2024. {31 March
2023: There was no breach of the terms of covenants in respact of debt securities issues and Borrowings {other than Debt Securities), except one case where a breach of the
covenant reported to lender, none of the lender did take any action on the same and same was cured by 31 March 2023).

C34. Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

This disclosure is not applicable to the Company since the NHB has not identifid any divergence in gross NPA reported by the Company

C35. Unhedged foreign currency exposura

There were no unhedged forelgn currency exposure during the year ended 32 March 2024, (31 March 2023: Nil)
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024
[All amount i INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Schedule to Balance Sheet of a Housing Finance Company as required in terms of Paragraph 16 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company —
Housing Finance Company {Reserve Bank} Directions, 2021:

Particulars
Liabilities side: 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

{1) |Loans and advances availed by the NBFC's inclusive of Amount Amount

interest accrued thereon but not pald: outstanding Amaunt overdue Amount outstanding overdue

a) Debentures :Secured - - 406,253 .
: Unsecured - - - -
[Other than falling within the meaning of public
deposits)
b) Deferred Credits - - - .
¢} Term Loans - - - .
d) Inter-corporate Ipans and borrowing - - - -
2} Commercial Paper - -
fl Public Deposit - - . .
gl Other Loans:-
External commercial barrowlngs - - - -
Bank overdraft - . . -
Working Capital Demand Loan -
Borrowing agalnst Securitlzed Portfolio 175,971 308,713
Finance lease ohligation - - - .

Assets side: Amount outstanding | Amcunt outstanding
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

{2} |Brealc-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those
included in (3) below]:

Securad 540,131 1,068,556
Unsecured - 90,000
Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting
(3} |towards AFC activities

1) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry

a) Financial lease - -
b) Operating lease - -
i) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
a) Assats on hire - -
b} Repossessed Assets - -
iii)__Other loans counting towards AFC activities :
a} Loans where assets have been repossessed 13,185 35,891

b} Loans other than (a) above - -

{4}  {Break-up of Investments:

Currant Investments

1. Quoted;

{1 Shares: (a) Eguity - -
{b) Preference - -

{ii) Debenturas and Bonds - -

{iil} Units of mutual funds 11,672 10,875

(iv) Government Securitles ’ - -

(v} Others - -

2. Unquoted:
i) Shares: {a) Equity ) - -

{b) Preference - -
{ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
{iii} Units of mutual funds - -
{iv] Government Securities - -
{v) Others - -

‘|Leng Term investments:

1. Quoted:

(i} Shares: {a) Equity - B
(b} Preference - -

(it} Debentures and Bonds - -
[ifi} Unlts of mutual funds - -
v} Government Securities - -
{v] Others -

2, Ungquotad:

(I} Shares: {a) Equity - .

{b) Prefarence - -
{ii) Debentures and Bonds . -
{iii} Units of mutual funds - -
(lv) Government Securities . -
(v} Others gy, | 5,315 5,315




Clix Houslng Finance Limited
Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the vear ended 31 March 2024
{Allamount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

{5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in {2} and {3) above:
Category Amount net of provistons
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Secured Unsecured Total| Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries - - - - - -
{b} Compan’es in the same group - - . - 83,967 83,967
(c] Other ralated parties - - - - - -
2. Other than related parties 615,743 615,743 972,769 - 972,769
Total 615,743 615,743 972,769 83,967 1,056,736
(6} [Investor group-wise classification of all investrments {current and long term) In shares and securities {both quoted and unguoted):
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Category Market Value / Bock Value (Net of | Market value / Break up | Book Valua
Break up or fair Provisions) or fair value or NAY {Net of
value or NAY Provisions)
1. Related Parties:-
{a} Subsidiaries - - -
{k} Compan’es in the same group - -
{¢) Other related parties - - - -
2. Other than related parties 16,987 16,987 16,190 16,190
Total 16,987 16,987 16,120 16,190
(7} |Other Infarmation 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
{i) Gross Nen-Performing Assets
a} Related parties - z
(b} Cther than related parties 56,432 §7,191
(i} FNet Non-Performing Assets
{a] Related parties - -
(k] Otherthan related partles 48,097 42,864
{ii} _ |Assets acqulred in satisfaction of debt - -




